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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of China Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present our annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2019.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as
plastic cloth and shaft. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group’s revenue increased to approximately RMB559 million,
representing an increase of approximately 7.3% in comparison to
that of 2018. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recorded a loss for the year of approximately RMB16 million, as
compared with profit of approximately RMB19 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The revenue of the Group’s POE umbrellas products decreased
by approximately RMB57 million, or 32.2%, from approximately
RMB177 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RMB120 million for the year ended 31 December
2019.

The revenue of the Group’s nylon umbrellas products decreased by
approximately RMB6 million, or 3.2%, from approximately RMB185
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB179 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The revenue of the Group’s umbrella parts products increased
by approximately RMB101 million, or 63.5%, from approximately
RMB159 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RMB260 million for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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Our principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen our position
as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan market and
on our own branded umbrella products in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) market, and increase our market share in existing
markets such as Hong Kong, Cambodia and Republic of Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all the
colleagues for their diligence, dedication, loyalty and integrity. | would
also like to thank all the shareholders, customers, bankers and other
business associates for their trust and support.

Huang Weniji
Chairman

Fujian Province, the PRC, 31 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEFNWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as plastic
cloth and shaft. The Group manufactures products at the production
site located in Dongshi Town and Yonghe Town of Jinjiang City in
Fujian Province of the PRC.

The Group principally sell POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and
umbrella parts on export basis to the Group’s overseas customers
which accounted for approximately 84% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group exported
its POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts to markets
such as Japan, Hong Kong, Republic of Korea, Taiwan, Spain and
Cambodia. The Group’s overseas customers would usually provide
the Group with their design and specification. The Group’s sales
personnel would closely communicate with the Group’s customers.
Depending on the specific needs of these overseas customers, the
Group’s sales personnel would put forward the Group’s suggestions
for modifications to design and specification from its research and
development staff to the Group’s customers for their consideration.
When customers decide on the final design and specification, the
Group would make samples and provide to the Group’s customers
for approval.

For domestic market, the Group sold its POE umbrellas, nylon
umbrellas and umbrella parts to the Group’s customers in the PRC
which accounted for approximately 16% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group’s domestic
customers would usually place orders with the Group from selection
of its existing POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas products which
are all designed by its research and development team. The Group
also sell some of its POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas under the
Group’s Jicheng (£ %) brand through sales to our non-trading
customers such as supermarkets.

The Group also manufactured umbrella parts as an ancillary products
mainly for the Group’s existing customers, both overseas and
domestic customers, some of which also purchased POE umbrellas
and nylon umbrellas from the Group.

The Group’s new business strategy is to shift business focus from
developing upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution
network and brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the
Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher margins.

To diversify its business and explore potential business opportunities,
the Group is exploring and developing business opportunities and
projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The revenue increased from approximately RMB521 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB559 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase of
approximately 7.3%. The increase in revenue from export markets
other than Japan was primarily due to the Group’s expansion into
new markets such as Cambodia, Europe and other Asian countries
(such as Republic of Korea and Republic of Philippines) which led
to increased demand for the POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and
umbrella parts products.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales increased from approximately RMB442 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB493 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase of
approximately 11.5%. The increase was mainly attributable to the
corresponding increase in direct materials costs and direct labour
costs to cope with the Group’s increase in revenue for the same
period.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, the gross profit decreased by
approximately RMB13 million, or 16%, from approximately RMB79
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB66 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 due to the
threat of a trade war between the PRC and the United States. The
gross profit margin decreased from approximately 15.2% for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately 11.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

The other income and gains decreased by approximately RMB4
million, or 28.6%, from approximately RMB14 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB10 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease was mainly due to
the absence of imputed interest on promissory notes receivables as
a result of the settlement of promissory notes during the year ended
31 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEFNWED T

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately RMB8
million or 72.7% from approximately RMB11 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB19 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in promotion expenses for our Group image.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB3 million,
or 6.5%, from approximately RMB46 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately RMB49 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to incur one-off equity-settled share-based payment
expenses of approximately RMB6.6 million during the year ended
31 December 2019.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by approximately RMBO0.6 million, or 6.0%,
from approximately RMB10 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB11 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. The increase in finance cost was mainly due to
the higher average borrowing level for the period.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a loss
for the year of approximately RMB16 million, as compared with profit
of approximately RMB19 million for the year ended 31 December
2018. The material decline in the financial performance of the Group
were mainly due to (i) the decrease in gross profit due to the threat
of a trade war between the PRC and the United States; (i) the
increase in selling and distribution expenses including marketing and
promotion expenses to support the Group’s business expansion
and to gain market share; (iii) the loss arising on change in fair value
of contingent consideration receivables of approximately RMB7.5
million in relation to the acquisition of a subsidiary during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and (iv) the one-off and non-cash share
option expenses of approximately RMB6.6 million in relation to the
share options granted during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank balances and cash
including fixed time deposits of approximately RMB55 million (2018:
approximately RMB57 million) amounted to approximately RMB81
million (2018: approximately RMB74 million), and short-term bank
borrowings amounted to RMB203 million (2018: approximately
RMB197 million). The annual interest rates of loans ranged from
4.35% to 5.76%. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s promissory
notes payables amounted to approximately RMB19 million.

The Group’s current ratio remained stable to approximately 2.3 times
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, which was calculated based on
the total current assets divided by the total current liabilities. As at
31 December 2019, the gearing ratio was approximately 56% (2018:
approximately 50%), which was calculated based on the bank
borrowings, bills payables and promissory notes as a percentage of
the total equity.

INVENTORIES

As at 31 December 2019, the inventories was approximately
RMB256 million (2018: approximately RMB161 million). The inventory
turnover days were increased from approximately 151 days in 2018
to approximately 154 days in 2019, which was calculated based on
the average of the beginning and ending balance of inventories for
the year divided by cost of sales for the year, and multiplied by 365
days.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2019, the trade receivables were approximately
RMB178 million (2018: approximately RMB234 million). The Group
generally allows an average credit period of 30 to 150 days to its
trade customers. The average trade receivables turnover day was
decreased from approximately 136 days in 2018 to approximately
135 days in 2019, which was calculated based on the average of
the beginning and ending trade receivable balances for the year
divided by revenue for the year and multiplied by 365 days. Trade
receivable turnover days remained stable during the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018. We have extended credit period for
those long term business relationships and good settlement history
customers suffering intense market competitions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEFNWED T

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2019, the trade and bills payables were
approximately RMB31 million (2018: approximately RMB35 million).
The Group’s suppliers typically grant us a credit terms ranging
from 30 days to 120 days. The average trade and bills payables
turnover days were decreased from approximately 43 days in 2018
to approximately 25 days in 2019, which was calculated based
on the average of the beginning and ending of trade and bills
payable balance of the year divided by cost of sales of the year and
multiplied by 365 days. This is mainly due to a decrease in purchase
of raw materials at the end of 2019.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The business of the Group is subject to numerous risks and
uncertainties. The following is a summary of some of the principal
risks and uncertainties affecting the Group’s business:

- The Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operations may be affected by the loss of key customers.

It is important for the Group to maintain close and mutually
beneficial relationships with the Group’s key overseas and
domestic customers. The Group’s revenue is also subject
to the Group’s customers’ business, product quality, sales
strategy, industry conditions and the overall economic market
environments. Any significant reduction of sales to or loss
of any of the Group’s key customers could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

- The Group may be subject to certain risks, such as political
and economic instability and fluctuations in currency rates
of foreign currencies, associated with selling our umbrella
products to Japan, the PRC and other overseas customers.

Any change in market demand levels for the Group’s umbrella
products in Japan, the PRC and in the Group’s other export
destinations may have a significant effect on the Group’s
business, financial condition and results of operations. In
particular, the Group is affected by changes in the economic
condition of Japan, a major destination of our products, and
the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As the Group’s sales are primarily made in US dollar, RMB and
Japanese Yen whereas the Group’s purchases of materials
and payment of wages and salaries to the PRC workers are
in RMB and US dollar, the Group is exposed to exchange rate
risk. In addition, the Group is exposed to the risks associated
with the currency conversion and exchange rate system in the
PRC.

- Fluctuations in prices of raw materials or unstable supply of
raw materials could negatively impact our operations and may
adversely affect our profitability.

The prices of most of the Group’s raw materials generally
follow the price trends of, and vary with, market conditions.
Supplies of these raw materials may also be subject to a
variety of factors that are beyond our control, including but not
limited to market shortages, suppliers’ business interruptions,
government control, weather conditions and overall economic
conditions, all of which may have an impact on their respective
market prices from time to time.

- The Group may experience a shortage of labour or our labour
costs may continue to increase.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material capital
commitment (2018: Nil). As at 31 December 2019, the Group did
not have any significant contingent liabilities (2018: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB90 million (2018:
approximately RMB94 million) and bank deposits with a carrying
amounts of approximately RMB10 million (2018: approximately
RMB7 million) were pledged to banks for bank borrowings and bills
payables.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 1,364
employees (2018: 1,592 employees). The emolument policy of the
employees of the Group was set up by the Board based on their
experience, qualifications and competence. Other employees’
benefits include contributions to statutory mandatory provident
funds, and social insurance together with housing provident funds to
its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEFNWED T

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND CAPITAL ASSETS

On 23 May 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in E/ I EE 5 AR A A (“Jingting”)
from an independent third party, which was satisfied by way of
RMB5,000,000 in cash and issuance of promissory note with
principal amount of RMB24,000,000 including the maturity term of
36 months. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant
investments, material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
capital assets during the year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on the Listing Date with net proceeds received by
the Company from the global offering in the amount of approximately
HK$134.2 million (equivalent to approximately RMB106.0 million)
after deducting underwriting commissions and all related expenses.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company published
on 30 December 2016, the Board has resolved to reallocate the
unutilised amount of approximately RMB61.4 million to the following
two areas:

1) approximately RMB36.9 million out of the unutilised net
proceeds for buying new brand-names and/or licensing
rights of umbrella products from Southeast Asian countries
to increase its market shares in those countries as well as
investing in a trading company comprising umbrella and other
products.

2)  toincrease the allocation for approximately RMB24.5 million for
brand awareness promotions and advertising expenses both in
domestic and overseas markets.

The Board is of the view that such re-allocation of unutilised net
proceeds is in line with the Group’s new business strategy to
shift business focus from developing upstream manufacturing to
downstream distribution network and brand building to facilitate
promotion of the Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher
margins.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEFNWED T

R-E—AE+-A=+— B FBREF
BMORIEATRE:

As at 31 December 2019, the net proceeds had been utilised as
follows:

Utilised

Unutilised amount amount for  Unutilised amount

as at the year ended as at

Revised 31 December 31 December 31 December
allocation 2019
“B-N%§
A=t-H
LEE
EBRLE
RMB (million)
AREEBEER

Use of net proceeds FiEREFERE

S
+=

BETIE
RMB (million)
AREEET

ABASH
RMB (million)
AREEETR

RMB (million)
ARBEETL

Increasing our production capacity by

ERREIBNREALE

constructing a factory B8 24.5 - - -
Paying the outstanding of THBBRERTAIN0ES

the consideration in relation to RREFIREL

the construction and completion of KYNFE

the new 10-storey office building 3.1 - - -
Strengthen our technical expertise BRASE/BEMERRK

and know-how to ensure continuous MENABRBELERE

improvement of our products Em 3.7 - - -
Additional working capital and FI2EERR

other general corporate purposes Hiv—RAR A% 10.6 - - -
Further expansion of our branded MmEEHEHARBEAR

umbrellas by intensifying our marketing BTEREREERE

activities to promote our brand HEEmME—FHE

awareness both in the domestic and FEERERS

overseas 27.2 23.4 7.9 1585)
Buying new brand-names and investing BENmEEBRIEE

in a trading company i )-CVNS 36.9 36.9 6 30.9
Total eH) 106.0 60.3 13.9 46.4
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB B D AT

EXPECTED TIMETABLE FOR FURTHER EXPANSION OF OUR MMEBZ#EEZHURBARBEBHITHIES
BRANDED UMBRELLAS BY INTENSIFYING OUR MARKETING ZAEEZBRAZEME—SHEELEER
ACTIVITIES TO PROMOTE OUR BRAND AWARENESS BOTH IN THE RIS SMEHEER

DOMESTIC AND OVERSEAS

Expected amounts to  Expected amounts to

Unutilised be utilised for the be utilised for the

amount as at year ending year ending

Use of net proceeds FBFEFHEAR 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2021
BE-Z-ZF BE-Z=--F

BE-Z-NE +=-ZA=t+-—-H +=ZA=+—H
+t=-A=1+—H I FEEG I FEEG
rBASE BEREE BERESHE
RMB (million) RMB (million) RMB (million)
ARBEBEETR AR¥BEETR AR¥BEETR

Further expansion of our branded Mo & SEFEAR
umbrellas by intensifying our BlA &G 5hT5
marketing activities to promote our REASERE
brand awareness both in the HMEEmE—F
domestic and overseas HEASERERS 15.5 7.8 7.7

According to the Company’s implementation plan, placing RIERAFTNEMHETE EEFERN
advertisements in traditional media and internet and participating 8 ETIEEE L8R E BN E E féf %
in major trade fairs in the PRC and overseas and investing in EBE&@ULEEEERSEME WAKRE
advertising and promotional materials for developing new markets of B E @B F 5 R EIIHEE L
our umbrella products and for training our sales and technical teams. i [& Fx o

Accordingly, the remaining net proceeds of approximately RMB15.5  H& It » 1 —NWF+ZA=+—8% @EFH
million as at 31 December 2019 allocated for further expansion of Tl §§ fﬁ /E@JMB/\I AREINTHRE

our branded umbrellas by intensifying our marketing activities to = & & % &N 4Z S M — */FTEJ*ZJK%IDDHE‘E_FE
promote our brand awareness both in the domestic and overseas ZEHIFIERFTSRIEFFEHAREI558E T
are intended to be fully utilised for the same specific use by #HR-_Z-—F+-A=+—HHEHAR
31 December 2021. Al —%E R -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB B AT

EXPECTED TIMETABLE FOR BUYING NEW BRAND-NAMES AND
INVESTING IN A TRADING COMPANY

BEFmERBERRE-BEZLAN
FEHRE X

Expected amounts  Expected amounts Expected amounts
fo to to
Unutilised amount be utilised for  be utilised for the be utilised for
asat  the year ending yearending  the year ending
Use of net proceeds FRREAREAR 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2021 31 December 2022
BZ-Z_ZF BZE-Z--F HE-B-C
-7 +ZA=+t-H t=ZA=t+-B t+=ZRA=+-H
L FERER LEERT LEERTHED
ABALE HERLH HEBRALE ik
RMB (million) RMB (million) RMB (million) RMB (million)
AREEER AR%EER AR¥EER ARYEER
Buying new brand-names and BEFNmEaRER
investing in a trading company RE-HEHAH 309 3 2 25.9

On 23 May 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of RZ-ZZE—HAERTAZ-+=H KEBTKA

100% equity interest in /L EE 5 FR A 7 (“Jingting”)
from an independent third party, which was satisfied by way of
RMB5,000,000 in cash and issuance of promissory note with
principal amount of RMB24,000,000 including the maturity term of
36 months.

Accordingly, the remaining net proceeds of approximately
RMB30.9 million as at 31 December 2019 allocated for buying new
brand-names and investing in a trading company are intended to be
fully utilised for the same specific use by 31 December 2022.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen
its position as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan
market and its own branded umbrella products in the PRC market,
and increase its market share in the existing markets such as Hong
Kong, Cambodia and Republic of Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.

BUF=-FTWBEInEEZBERAE (B
IBE|)100% B #E - UeiE LA A R 5,000,000
TR & REITASE AR A R24,000,0007T
BHAMR A36ME A8 & K 2 T AL e

At R=B—AF+=A=+—BHEM
%%E%m%%m&&é SETPNSLE
BEEREF O RB09T BT R =
oo+ AS+—ENEKARA &
ER -

REREE

AEEZTERERERMERAKEER
BAMSNERERRTPEMEEEmER
REUER 2 BAMLIARBAREBNEE
REELBBEERAMS IS

RERAF AEEBEBELAERE L
BEEBRETHOHEABRREESR A RER
ERBERe A AEEREREAREIEE
ZEBE UERBAEENRELERELZEMD
W RETIEREER UMEEEEE:
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019
20194 F 3§

15



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREAEE

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. The Board comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The Company has
adopted and complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date with the following deviations:

Under paragraph A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of an issuer should
be separated and should not be performed by the same person.
Mr. Huang is currently the Chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer who is primarily responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. The Directors consider that
vesting the roles of the Chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer in the same person facilitates the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and decision making, and maximizes the
effectiveness of the Group’s operation. The Directors also believe
that the presence of three independent non-executive Directors
provides added independence to our Board. The Directors will
review the structure from time to time and consider an adjustment
should it become appropriate.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors should attend general meeting of the Company. Mr. Tso
Sze Wai, Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, being the
independent non-executive Directors, did not attend the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 31 May 2019 due to their other
business engagements.

16  CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED

PEISKERERA A

TEERERTR

ARB—BEHIRFSKFEEER UM
BAMB R IR R M i LR R RE R A2
S BEFEHNRATESTR=REILIFH
TESAX -ARRN LW AMED RAL
By EmARRAM 4 E 2 ERER TR
(TEESTAIL) - MHERIA T RBEE SN :

BiE EHRAIK 145 A2 BITAEE
RITBRBEEZzACEERY M NERR—
AET BRI EAEBESTSEIERITHRE
H ITEEEAREEBHRERE -EER
AREBEESIRLTRAEAHACRHRE — AEX
AR 3 AR S B AS KBS 2 1T BRI E A
ReAXtibitm A LB ZEERE - EBN
RE ZBBMNIIENTEZZHEEAE A
EEEEe B IM -BEEE AT EMZE
B WERENEERETHEE

STRMEXFABTHRREBLIERTESEL
FARBZBRAG ARBHMBAE B
VA TEFERRELE BEAXRERF
RRLLTIREFEARARAR-_T-NFHA
=t BRTZRRBFRE-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
DIRECTORS

The Directors have adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific enquiries
have been made to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
Board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Huang Wenji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhengshuang and
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tso Sze Wai, Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit
Ying, Winnie.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREAEE

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst Directors. Their biographical details and (where
applicable) their family relationships are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
41 to 42 in the annual report. A list of the Directors identifying their
role and functions and whether they are independent non-executive
Directors are available on the Company’s website.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group. It
also decides on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments, investment
policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for implementing its business
strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors and members of senior
management. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management. The Board also reviews the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Group’s senior management to fuffill their duties. Independent
professional advice can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon their request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisation. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERBE

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS EEHESEEBER

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the #HE_ZT—hAhFE+_A=+—"HIFE &
Company, meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the ZBLXFEARFIBREAS BEESEH BEXRZE
F 2 S

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee duringthe E& HFHEE @R EZZESSZBENH
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out below: HIEAT :

Annual Audit Remuneration Nomination
general Board committee committee committee

meeting meetings meetings meetings meetings
BRZEE ¥HzEe REZES
RREEAS EzeeE =f -f -

(number of mestings attended/number of mestings held during respective director’s tenure)

(REZERIRLEEARY/ ROERRY)

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Huang Wenji BENERE 1 6/6 N/A T3 N/A T F N/A T
Mr. Yang Guang BREE 0/1 6/6 N/A i A N/A N F N/A i A
Mr. Lin Zhenshuang HESEE o 66 NATER NA R N/A FiE i
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth ERELE 0/1 6/6 N/A i A N/A i A N/A i

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Mr. Tso Sze Wai EREEE 0/1 6/6 2/2 1N 11

Mr. Yang Xuetai BEAEE 0/1 6/6 2/2 11 11

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie FREELL 0/1 6/6 2/2 11 11
DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANGE EERSRAERR

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect AARIEMEZR SR A B AL 2 &
of potential legal actions against the Directors and officers of the EZTTENELEE NIRRLHE -
Company.
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CREAEE

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors also
understand the importance of continuous professional development
and are committed to participating in any suitable training or relevant
materials reading in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has received from each Director a confirmation
of their participation in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials on the topics
related to corporate governance and regulations.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests of
the shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the Board
and its committees to provide their independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One
of the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted confirmation
of his/her independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations,
the Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Each Board Committee has its defined and written terms of
reference approved by the Board covering its duties, powers and
functions. Their terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

U]

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board by providing an independent view on the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group, overseeing the
audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tso Sze Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Lee
Kit Ying, Winnie and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit
Committee held two meetings to review the annual and
interim results of the Group and make recommendations to
the Board and the management in respect of the Group's
financial reporting and internal control procedures. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee has
also reviewed, with the management and the Company’s
auditor, the Group’s significant internal controls and financial
matters in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written
terms of reference and made relevant recommendations
to the Board. The Audit Committee’s review covered the
audit scope and findings, external auditor’s independence
and performance, the Group’s accounting principles and
practices, the Listing Rules and statutory compliance,
connected transactions, internal controls, risk management,
financial reporting matters (including the interim and annual
financial reports for the Board’s approval) and the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function as well
as their training programmes and budget. It also reviewed this
Corporate Governance Report and an internal control review
report on the Company prepared by an independent advisor.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, reviewing the terms of remuneration packages,
determining the award of bonuses and considering the grant
of options under the share option scheme of the Company. As
at the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration
policy, remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management in accordance with the Remuneration
Committee’s written terms of reference.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Xuetai
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai
and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie. The principal responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are to review the composition
of the Board, including its structure, size and diversity at
least annually to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Group. It is also responsible to consider and
recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession planning
of Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also
give consideration to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined
below) when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will review the
Board Diversity Policy (as defined below), so as to develop and
review measurable objectives for the implementing the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below) and to monitor the progress
on achieving these objectives.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, one meetings was
held by the Nomination Committee to, among other things,
review the structure, size and composition of the board, assess
the independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors, formulate the board diversity policy and recommend
to the board for approval. The Nomination Committee reviewed
the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process
by making reference to the skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations required for the positions. All candidates must
be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an independent non-executive Director should also meet
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the
Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and to consider
the qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election
at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board is maintained.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board on 23 January 2015 in compliance with provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code, which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to discuss the overall
strategic directions, the Group’s operations, financial performance,
and to approve interim and annual results and other significant
matters. For regular meetings, Board members are given at least
14 days prior notice and agenda with supporting papers are sent to
Directors not less than 3 days before the relevant meeting is held.
Directors may propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary
to include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at board meetings and abstain from voting in favour of the related
board resolutions as appropriate.

Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are
kept by the Company Secretary in sufficient details of the matters
considered and decisions reached, including dissenting views
expressed, and are open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Director. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable time
after the board meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are followed.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, a person
may be appointed as a Director either by the shareholders in general
meeting or by the Board. Any Directors appointed by the Board as
additional Directors or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

Mr. Yang Xuetai, being independent non-executive Director has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Each of
Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie have entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year.

Each of Mr. Lin Zhenshuang, being executive Directors and Ms. Lee
Kit Ying and Mr. Yang Xuetai, independent non-executive Directors
will be subject to retirement and re-election at annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s articles
of association.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 23 January 2015. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. While all Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Chiu Kung Wai, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant, who is an
employee of the Company as the Company Secretary. The Company
Secretary reported to the Board from time to time. All Directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

During the year under review, Mr. Chiu Kung Wai has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training and has fulfilled the
requirement pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

= Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The
risk management and internal control system are design to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has engaged
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function
to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group. There is no significant
deficiency and weakness on the internal control system has
been identified by the external advisory firm for the year ended
31 December 2019.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2019,
the risk management and internal control system and procedures
of the Group, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
were reasonably effective and adequate.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future and not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may affect the business of the
Company or cast doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.
The responsibilities of Elite Partners CPA Limited, the Company’s
external auditor, with respect to financial reporting are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended
31 December 2019 are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2019 by band is set out below:
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During the year, the Group engaged external auditor to perform audit
and non-audit services amounted to approximately RMB671,000
and RMB135,000 respectively. The non-audit services included
primarily ESG reporting advisory, internal control consultancy and
reviewing certain financial information.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has in place a policy on handling and dissemination
of inside information (“Policy”) which sets out the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place
any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the
market to price the listed securities of the Company with the latest
available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff
of the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It
also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of
inside information of the Company shall be conducted by publishing
the relevant information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure, enable
all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. Under the Company’s articles of association,
the shareholder communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

(I)  PARTICIPATION AT GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Company encourages the participation of
the shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings where the shareholders meet and exchange
views with the Board, and to exercise their right to vote at
meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings
and circulars containing details on proposed resolutions to be
sent to the shareholders no less than 20 business days before
the meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors.
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ENQUIRIES AND PROPOSALS TO THE BOARD

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by either directly
raising questions on both operational and governance matters
to the Board and Board Committees at the general meetings
or providing written notice of such proposals for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room 904,
Loon Kee Building, 275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
or via email to enquiry@jcumbrella.com.

CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room
904, Loon Kee Building, 275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong, for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s articles of
association or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding
procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election
as director. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out
above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.

30 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED

PEISKERERA A

(I

(1)

MEESSEHARRHER

AARSBRELNERERS  WEA
RERRRgREEFEREFLZESRE
MEENRERESEEFZIEMELES
HEBEEZNERBANEIARNAN
EXETEEEME Rt AR EE
BB RO755E BERC A EQ0AE S BH E
enquiry@jcumbrella.com A 2 & A &) %
*,

ARBRRIFIARE

EEHNBEERBARERIAE - R
REBHERZABEMFHREFNKRE
REREHARDRBABRART DR +D
i S Y S WINC = i
RENRKE - BEERKEULEEANM
EEYLAIMEBRL  WEARXERQAH
EAETEEENT RSt AR BE
BB 275 BERD R EQOAE - LEKE
EREEBBERMEETHNEEABFH
BREFNARE - FHEAEENREEK
EMERARNBR -MRIRHEBEKE
“t+t—NHAEENABHREBERS
AR H Bk A TR LMERE R BT 8
AAE MREERKALTEREEREAR
AAEmMELNBEERIBHAARR
RIAEER -

ARAFABERMAKFASREF2E
RAVE(—NMR—FEBIRER Hak
REBEARBRRERRAGR L
EEOEFOAE (RBREESTNE
RN o BORATAR IR bt A2 Fr A B BX
RERARENEEABERERRELDN
EROET N



(V)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The notice of annual general meeting together with the
accompanying circular setting out the relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting
has been adopted for decision-making at shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to one vote.
Details of the poll voting procedures are set out in the circular
sent to shareholders prior to the meeting and explained at
the commencement of the meeting. Voting results are posted
on the Company’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS
A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Article 113 of the articles of association of
the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at
the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the
Company. The period for lodgement of the notices required
will commerce no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no change in
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company.

(V)

EREABE

BRRBFAGREERLMHRAREER
FIBRMRRE E R BEMT BN KR e R =D
20fE BB & X A AR - RIRR K
G FARE DRAERBIRER R
NERERKNDEE —FEREE K
BRERREFNFBINEREN T
T IR AR WK S B A B A0 A
B RERRERRNBERBFAEE
BERRD R AL R o

REATZSRESHNER

REARBAHEERZMAF1130%
REBEEN BEECAMAL(RELER
ENEERINEERNEMBRRRE
tEEESE RIEEEFHEEBE B
ERLEmMBANRAERRERRBAL
BEEE THEERRALRENE
HBMRABEEEE X TARA A
ERABPELRE -FHAREBAN
BH ATERFEAEHREEEZR
RAEBEZHEETERNZBRAE
RITHHAMER A RARRELR
MOREHRTIFILONLER -

ERXH
RE-F-AF+-A=+—BILEE &

X B A AR T AR A K A R

28

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
20194 F 3§

31



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HBRERKSE

ENVIRONMENTS
EMISSIONS

The Group’s umbrella manufacturing business closely relates to
environmental protection — one of the core values of the Group.
As a leader of Asia’s umbrella industry, the Group follows closely
the relevant laws and regulations implemented and specific actions
taken by different countries on the reduction of greenhouse gas
emission.

Violating the environmental regulations may result in temporary
suspension of production. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group did not aware of any non-compliance with these
environmental regulations.

Emissions management

The Group repeatedly implemented energy saving projects and
replacement of high carbon emissions as measures in order to
establish emission reduction and energy saving. The Group’s
factories during the production are completely based on ISO 14001
standard, the environmental management system.

It is the view of the Group that POE and nylon used for the
productions of their umbrella business are the most critical
environmental concerns of the Group and its stakeholders.
Further, the machineries used for their production are powered by
electricity, which will result in a certain amount of carbon footprint.
Therefore, the Group has established policies to limit emissions from
the production by ensuring the efficient use of frequent facilities
checking.

Air emissions

During the year under review, air pollutants emitted from the Group
such as sulphur oxides (“SOx”), nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) and
particulate matter (“PM”) were generated from vehicles used for
transportation. To minimize the adverse impact on the environment,
all vehicles and machineries of the Group are driven by unleaded
petrol.
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Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions

The Group has constantly updated with the local legislation and
standards for environmental protection and assessed whether
these legislations and standards are related to the business of the
Group and the Group’s compliance status. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group has complied with environmental
laws and regulations applicable to the Group’s business. The
Group will continue looking for ways to reduce carbon dioxide (COx)
emissions and land contamination.

Air emissions REHEHK

Nitrogen oxides (“NOX’) —4{t® (INOx )
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) Za bk (1Sox])
Particular matters BmE
Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions BERBHK

Scope 1 - direct emissions from the use of
motor vehicles

Scope 2 - indirect emissions from the
consumption of electricity

Scope 3 - other indirect emissions

Total GHG emissions

Intensity of GHG emissions per million RMB revenue

719

BEREBAERE

Waste productions

Waste production was mainly attributed to the discarded packaging
materials and domestic wastes of office, while no hazardous wastes
are produced during the manufacturing process. About 265 tonnes
of non-hazardous waste were discharged which are mainly basic
household garbage during the year ended 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group minimizes the
materials used in the manufacturing process so as to maximize the
resource efficiency of our operations. The Group makes a record
of the amount of material used to reduce unnecessary waste
of materials. The Group uses appropriate tools to further avoid
excessive use of components and materials in the manufacturing
process.
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HE2 —RENBEIMN
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2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\E
222,868 g 7% 164,739 9%

37997 250 g%
20,872 g7 1,324 g%
70 tonne W& 44 tonne WA

5,382 tonne I 5,747 tonne It
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R HBRERKSE

Waste production was mainly attributed to the domestic wastes of
office. Throughout the Group, the following actions have been taken
to reduce waste productions:

- communicate through e-mails to reduce the use of papers;

- duplex printings and reuse single-sided printed papers; and

- monitor the production process to reduce errors and
reproductions.

USE OF RESOURCES

Energy consumption

The Group is committed to consume efficiently the resources during
production. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
aims to reduce consumption through more targeted efforts by
participating in an energy conservation programme.

The Group engaged in production has taken to restrict control of
discharging waste into the air, land and water. It is the Group’s
policies to maintain the manufacture process in an efficient and
effective manner. The Group strived to mitigate the environmental
impact of its umbrella producing activities. Also, the Group ensured
waste water is properly connected to municipal sewage system and
all land waste is send to municipal solid waste management plant
during production.

In 2019, the Group constantly pursued the efficient use of resources.
The Group also and rationalized planning equipment layout and
operational processes to reduce the waste of energy and resources
generated during the production process. It is the Group’s policy
to maintain the manufacture process in an efficient and effective
manner to reduce accordingly the energy waste in the production.

Packaging materials

The packaging materials used by the Group are primarily plastic
wrapping films and carton boxes, of which the sizes are determined
according to the requirements of different customers. Despite the
use of packaging materials to the products, the Group makes every
effort to minimise the wastage of resource. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group has wholly stopped using individual
plastic bags for each products.
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The details of the consumption of natural resources and the use of
packaging materials are summarised as below:

Consumption

H#E
2019
—EB-NhEF

Natural resources

BREIR
Water m? 113,789
K AV
Electricity kWh 6,688,499
)| TR
Paper Kg 395
R T
Unleaded petrol L 25,797
U 7t

Packaging materials

GRS
Carton box Unit 1,414,923
i) &
Plastic bags Unit Nil
BRI & i3
Packaging wrap kg 154,750
BER Fr

The consumption intensity of water and electricity are dropped by
19% and 13% respectively. This is the key for the Group to attribute
to the environmental friendly strategies. The Group is committed
to perform regular assessment in analysing data in aims for better
management in the use of resources.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group has been promoting the sustainable use of natural
resources. For example, Polyvinyl Chloride (“PVC”) is relatively
cheap, easy to assemble and is durable. However, PVC degrades
very slowly, and can release toxic when being burn. The Group has
therefore been using POE to manufacture its products. POE is an
environmental friendly fabric for an umbrella’s canopy, which is free
of Azo and heavy metal Chromium. POE is also biodegradable and
recyclable and is an environmentally friendly substitute for PVC. Also,
the Group has policies for daily inspection and maintenance in order
to maintain the facilities’ efficiency.

—E—N\F

RE HERERRE

(AR R B S TR B 3 B R 8 165 R S A
W :

Consumption intensity
(per million RMB revenue)
HERE
(BEBARBHA)
2019
—B-NF

2018 2018

—T—N\F

130,935 203 251
7,142,702 11,973 13,705
416 0.7 0.8
17,038 43.8 33
529,832 2,533 1,017
966,000 N/A 1,853
TEA
139,188 277 267

RKZERAEERD B THE19% KX13% °
Itk 7% 7N 62 [ R 1T IR AR SRS A B 52 o AN R B K
A RFEEESOTBBEAR I ERER
H RIS

REREAER
AEBHEHHERERNTZERNA 7
m-BRLE([PVC)ERER  HR4AR
BEBEMA A PVCHRRIEFEE  ER
EEeERESRE-At A58 —HFE
FAPOEMKEIAEER POER— A AR
REZENRREGEY TE2BARESER N
AR R R B RPVCHIRFE R Gt
SN AEBEFIE R BRE RAEZEBR R
FERHEE TVEM R o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
20194 F 3§

35



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERKE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
EMPLOYMENT

As a labour-intensive industry, the Group’s success would greatly
rely on the effort contributed by employees of the Group. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the total number of the employees
of the Group in China was 1,364, including 7 executives, 12
managers, 379 officers and 966 workers. The gender ratio between
male and female as of 31 December 2019 is approximately at 11:9.

The Group has adopted practices and policies of Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China (F#EARZEMEILE) %) , Labour
Contract Law of People’s Republic of China (& # AR LFE
LE)A[RE) and other relevant laws. The Group had in place
human resources management system that contain specific terms
to address compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest periods
and other benefits and welfare for our staff. The Group’s employee
handbook distributed to employees also highlight important
information of policies on compensation, employee benefits, rights
on termination, business conduct and leave benefits.

Staff details are categorised by gender and age group are as follow:

45% 29%

55%

Male
B

Female
[ ] 21-30
EgE: ® 2130

During the reporting period, the Group did not aware of any material
non-compliance relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, discriminations.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

In order to minimise workplace incidents and put the health and
safety of the staffs as the priority of productions, the Group has
established a set of staff handbooks, which included aspects
such as safety policies. Every worker was required to follow safety
instructions. During that year, the Group has no reported incidents of
non-compliance with regulations concerning workplace health and
safety.

Workplaces are equipped with fire and safety facilities to prevent
and control outbreak of fire accidents. Also, the functionality of the
fire facilities has been regularly checked, for example, fire exits were
always constantly kept clear. Staff had been trained and possess
basic knowledge in using fire extinguishing equipment. Fire drills
have also been regularly conducted. There are strict requirements for
staff in clothing, access of non-operational staff, and knowledge of
workplace hazards to ensure the safety of our employees.

The Group has no reported work injuries and work-related fatalities
during the year ended 2019. The Group will continue to improve the
safety management system in order to protect employees’ health
and safety in workplace.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group encourages its employees to advance and improve
themselves pursuing further development. Therefore, the Group
has held various internal and external training programs to further
develop its workforce. Regularly, staffs would be assigned to attend
training courses such as management certificate studies, first aids
training, and top-up courses for specialized skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there are over 2,415
participants in total for monthly training session. The male to female
ratio of participants is 13:10. Subjects included orientation, pre-job
training, on-the —job training, fire safety, professional skill and so on.
Then, company would gather back feedback and recommendations
from staffs to further improve the quality and effectiveness of training.
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strictly complied with Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Protection of Minors and as
stipulated by the Labour Law of the PRC in terms of employment
management, there is neither child nor forced labour in our Group’s
operation. For the year ended 31 December 2019, no employees
of the Group aged under 16. Further, there had not been any no
dispute between the Group and its teams of staff.

OPERATING PRACTICES
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

In order to maintain long term relationship with its suppliers for
ensuring stable supply, the Group establishes a comprehensive
vertical supply chain management system through supplier screening
and management and resource integration. The group has 822
suppliers while about 97% of supplier located in the Mainland China
and other suppliers are mainly from other Asian countries. Raw
materials suppliers are the major suppliers of the Group. Thus, the
Group would evaluate the performance of the major vendors of the
Group, on whether the quality of raw materials have passed the
Group’s requirement and standards. Raw material that does not
qualify will be returned to supplier.

The quality and safety of our products are the top priorities of the
Group. The Group are committed to ensure its supply chain is
operating as efficiently as possible to ensure its products are safe
and standardised. Greater emphasis is placed on the communication
and relationship with the suppliers towards sustainable development.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has put the product quality as its first priority as the
performance of the product can directly affect the relationship with
customers as well as the reputation of the business. Therefore, the
Group has already been focusing on meeting customer expectations
and delivering customer satisfaction by introducing ISO 9001.
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To improve the product quality management of the Group, the Group
strive to identify product quality problems earlier and address the
problems promptly. This promote the protection of the company’s
credibility and enhance the company’s market share. As a testament
of this, the company uses “Plastic umbrella product standards and
test methods” (BB EMITLEREET)E) and “Nylon umbrella
product standards and test methods” (fE e 2k EE TH1Z & K 1% B
F7&) to control the quality. Quality control covers raw materials
quality control, manufacturing process quality control and finished
product quality control.

The products of the Group are subjected to the Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREARKXFMEERE 2
J&) which ensure the company’s responsibility to compensate for
damages done to persons or property in case of defected products.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
products returned due to safety or health problems or any significant
complaint received from our customers. In order to protect
consumer data and privacy, client information is kept confidentially

and destroyed on a timely basis.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group sees integrity as the key for sustainable development of
the Group. The Group strives to maintain high standards of business
integrity in its operation, the Group has no tolerance towards any
corruption, fraud, money laundering, bribery, and extortion. During
this financial year, the Group did not have any violation of laws and
regulations relevant to the activity of the Group, such as Criminal law
of the People’s Republic of China { Fr#E A R EME L) and the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic {F13E A R #
MBERPEZHEFIE) .

The Group also sees that a management system with good moral
integrity and anti-corruption mechanisms is the cornerstone for
sustainable and healthy development of the Group. The Group
has in place procedures to comply with guidelines on anti-money
laundering and counter-terrorist financing. Any suspicious
transactions would be notified and reported to the relevant governing
body by a responsible officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not aware
of any non-compliances of anti-corruption.

RE HERERRE

RRAAEENERERER AEEFRN
RAZREREZHNENMEFERABE T
EBRETHARAAEENRE TEAT
RRBOTIHOE - AREER (ERBRER
BRERBRTE) M(EERERBRER
BRR) EVERERANAZALE -BXR

ZHRERM B ERER LEREERE
il Ko o am R £

AEEEMY (PEARKVNBERDEZR)
MR B ARE R R AR EE MR FEEK A
AGMEBRRAAEGREET -BEZE_F— A
F+-A=1+T—BLEFE XEELELM
EmRTex@FERNEMERD FAREE
EREAREPRF RREZFPEENEN
BEPEMNREBEERAL S LA HEEK-

&%

AEEREEALERTRETRNER.

BHARELBRP R BT DENTLEE

187 (LA B0 BEE S8 P A EE
1380 RARBTBE [ - 7 o 90 4 8 R AT (] B2
AEEEDHERNERRER 0 (FEAR
AREME) R (FEARANERTES
BER) o

AEETRASEGRFBRERNRRBE#S
MERGERAKEAFERRBRNESL -
AEBEHERFAETHBAREE KRR
MEZEMENES - HWEEAARRS g
HEEAEABMLRRETABIEHE-

BE_F-NFT_HA=7 HIEFE &
SEYEBHBRENITETRBERNER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
20194 F 3§

39



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERKE

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

In order to be a good business leader, it is the Group’s believe that
it is fundamental to be a good community leader: The Group see
this as a responsibility of being a successful company. As such,
the Group believes in giving back to the society. The Group makes
effect in evaluating community programmes that prompts the same
ideology of the Group and the Group makes substantial monetary
contributions. This year, the Group has donated RMB310,000
to various recognised charity organisations, including Quanzhou
Merchants Development Promotional Association (R M R 7 %
R{R#E 2" and some other local charity organisations in Fujian
Province. The Group will continue to support a wide range of area
of contributions, including education, medicals, elderly care by
supporting these and other similar organisations.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERENEEABBEFE

DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenji (=3 £ ) , aged 51, is the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Huang was appointed as a Director on 12 June 2014 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 25 September 2014. He
founded our Group in May 1996 and is responsible for the overall
management, strategic development and major decision-making
of our Group. Mr. Huang is a Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Huang
completed his secondary education in the PRC in July 1987.

Mr. Yang Guang (153%) , aged 51, was appointed as an executive
Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group in November
2007 as financial controller as well as secretary to the board of
directors of Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd. (i8R B ¥H

A F]) (“Fujian Jicheng”). Mr. Yang has been the deputy general
manager of Fujian Jicheng since November 2010, and is responsible
for supervising our Group’s production. He worked for A& 45 5 8
A% 17 B BR A &) (Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd.) as finance officer from
November 1999, and was promoted to finance manager in August
2001. He then worked for t&i&)8 B &£ B AR A A (Fujan Xunxing
Group Company Limited) as finance manager from May 2002 to
October 2007. Mr. Yang graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics with finance major in July 1994.

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang (# 5 %), aged 41, was appointed as an
executive Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group
in August 2001 and is the manager of the international business
department of Jinjiang Jicheng Industry Co., Ltd. (B IE/KETH
fR 2 A]) (“Jinjiang Jicheng”). He is responsible for supervising our
Group’s sales and marketing operations. Mr. Lin graduated from
Huagiao University with a diploma in Japanese Language in June
2000.

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth ($E{£7%f) , aged 53, was appointed an
executive Director of the Company on 13 April 2015. He has more
than 10 years’ experience in project management and business
strategic planning. Mr. Chung worked as a production manager
in the field of consumer electronics products for over 5 years and
his responsibilities mainly focused on overseeing the production
process. Mr. Chung is responsible for the strategic planning and
finance of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai (5 B # ), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 7 October 2016. Mr. Tso
holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce awarded by University of New
South Wales, Australia and a postgraduate diploma in Computing
in the University of Western Sydney, Australia. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Accountants. He has over 20
years of experience in accounting, corporate finance and corporate
secretarial matters. He was the financial controller and company
secretary of Green Energy Group Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 979). He had held
senior management positions in a number of listed companies in
Hong Kong and Singapore.

Mr. Yang Xuetai (#5522 KX), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 January 2015. Mr. Yang
graduated from China Academy of Art with a bachelor degree in
industrial design in July 1998 and a master degree in art in January
2010. He has been working for the art faculty of The Huagiao
University as assistant professor since 2010. He had also been a
visiting scholar of Tunghai University in Taiwan for five months in
2012.

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (Z=452%) , aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 August 2015. Ms. Lee
holds a Postgraduate certificate in Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong and Diploma in Accounting from
The University of Hong Kong, School of Professional and Continuing
Education. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of experience in finance and
administration. She has worked for various foreign and multi-national
organisation.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Liangping (2| R ) , aged 51, is the manager of the Group’s
research and development department. He joined our Group in
2000 as manager of the production department of Jinjiang Jicheng.
He has later become the manager of the Group’s research and
development department and is responsible for supervising our
Group’s product design, and research and development operations.
Mr. Liu completed his secondary education in the PRC in June 1986.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and sale of
umbrellas and the relevant products. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review in respect of the Group’s performance for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and the material factors underlying its
results and financial position, principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, as well as the Group’s environmental policies, are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 6 to 15 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group is
committed adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. We strive to minimize
our environmental impact by energy saving, recycling of used
papers, office supplies and other materials. For details, please refer
to the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Report” on pages 32 to 40 of this report.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any incidence of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.
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RELATIONS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises that our employees are one of the greatest
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with competitive remuneration
package and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills to attract and retain our employees. The Board
reviews the remuneration package of our employees annually and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the prevailing market
practices. The Group also adopted share options scheme to reward
the contribution of the employees as an incentive.

The Board also strives to develop long-standing and good
relationships with our customers and suppliers in order to achieve
the Group’s long-term goals.

During the year, there was no significant dispute between the Group
and our business partners.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, aggregate sales to the
Group’s largest and top five customers accounted for approximately
18.1% (2018: approximately 25.1%) and approximately 59.4%
(2018: approximately 73.8%), respectively, of the Group’s total
Revenue for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, aggregate purchases
from the Group’s largest and top five suppliers of raw materials
accounted for approximately 35.0% (2018: approximately 12.6%)
and approximately 53.4% (2018: approximately 40.9%), respectively,
of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder of the Company (who or which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the Group’s top five customers and
suppliers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 164 of
the annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to
163 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves of the Company and the Group are set out in
note 38(B) and the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There was no reserve available for distribution to the shareholders of
the Company as at 31 December 2019.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure an optimal capital structure and shareholder returns when its
dividend policy considers:

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

° return on equity and other corresponding restrictions of the
Group;

° the Group’s capital requirement and surplus;
o the Group’s liquidity position;

° general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of the
Company; and

° other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board will continue to review the Group’s dividend policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period. The payment of
dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the applicable laws
and the Company’s Articles of Association.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group donated approximately RMB310,000
(2018: approximately RMB71,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
latest practicable date prior to issue of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenii

Mr. Yang Guang

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai
Mr. Yang Xuetai
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie

Pursuant to Article 108 and Article 112 of the Company'’s articles of
association, Mr. Huang Wenji and Mr. Yang Guang being executive
Directors, and Mr. Tso Sze Wai, being an independent non-executive
Director shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All
the retiring Directors are eligible for re-elections.

During the year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report,
Mr. Huang Weniji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhenshuang and
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth are also directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other director of the Company’s
subsidiaries include Mr. Chen Ruixin.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2019.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive in the Company’s shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the associated corporations of
the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which will have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN THE COMPANY
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Saved as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, the persons or corporations who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:
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interested in the shares held by Jicheng Investment Limited under
the SFO.

2. Ms. Chen Jieyou is the spouse of Mr. Huang Weniji and accordingly
is deemed to be interested in the shares in which Mr. Huang Wenji
has interest under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons or corporation having an
interest or short position in shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, except for those
disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no material connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions between the Group and its connected
persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which are subject to
the reporting, announcement and the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of his/her duties in his/her office. The Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
confirmation given by Mr. Huang Wenji and Jicheng Investment
Limited, being controlling shareholders (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) of the Company, to ensure their compliance with the
non-competition undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus (the
“Prospectus”) of the Company dated 3 February 2015.

OTHER UNDERTAKINGS BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders have
also undertaken to indemnify the Group against all actions, claims,
demands, proceedings, costs and expenses, losses and liabilities
whatsoever made, suffered or incurred by the Group arising from (i)
the restructuring and reorganisation undergone by the Group on or
before the date on which the global offering becomes unconditional;
or (i) the Group’s non-compliance with the PRC laws, rules and
regulations as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Business —
Non-compliance” of the Prospectus. No provision has been made
for the above during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

There had been no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 January
2015 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible persons for
their past contributions and attracting and retaining, or otherwise
maintaining on-going relationships with, such eligible persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a
period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include any proposed, full-time
or part-time employees, executive or officers of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; any directors or proposed director (including
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and any
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting, i.e. 378,600,000 shares of the Company. Subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time, the Board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of the approval by the shareholders in general
meeting; and/or

(ii) grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Board.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of shares to
be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of options in excess of 1% limit
shall be subject to: () the issue of a circular by the Company; and
(i) the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and/or other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later
than ten years from the date of grant of the share options subject
to the provisions for early termination thereof. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company HK1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 21 days
after the offer date.
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The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the shares on
the date of the offer for the grant, which must be a business day; (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share.

The following table disclosed movements in the Company’s share
options during the year:

Exercise

Grantee Exercise period price

Date of grant

Employess 10 April 2019 10 April 2019 to 9 April 2029 0.045
B8 “Z-NENA+A “Z-NEmA+AZE
ZENENANA

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director of the Company or their respective spouses
or minor children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practice.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 16 to 31.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring Auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Huang Weniji
Chairman and Executive Director

Fujian Province, the PRC, 31 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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elite
partnhers

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 163,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matter
HAREVSER

Business combination

E A=k

Refer to note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
FELREE T HRERM T34 -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group completed
the acquisition of Jinjiang Jingting Trading Company Limited* ( &
IMEZ SBRAT) at total consideration of RMB29,000,000, in
which RMB5,000,000 was settled in cash and RMB24,000,000 was
settled by issue of promissory notes to the vendor (the “Acquisition”).
Management assessed the nature of the acquisition by assessing
if there are economic resource and business process associated
with it. Management determined whether the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed under the acquisition constituted a business
and therefore the transaction was accounted for as business
combination.

REBEZZT-—NF+ZA=1+—HLEFE ESETKKES
ImEZSHARRNAE BRER/ARK29,000,0007T HF AR
5,000,0007T LA IR & 45 & I A #24,000,0007T A A1 & 77 817K
FEEE(WESHE]) EBECTREREES IR EERR
EBBRE UAHEBEFENLE -EREETRBERBEEMK
BRNEEMMAENBESSBEBRER WHEERXH ARIIE
EBaH-

Accounting for business combination requires the Group to allocate
the purchase price to the assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and
intangible assets identified based on their estimated fair values at the
date of acquisition.
EARIMEZBAHNBERT - SREARBENUE B ROMET
ANTHE BEEEIREMKENEE MEAENEBRAEMNE
BIZEE-

Independent external valuation has been obtained in order to
support the fair values of the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and
intangible assets identified.
EEBERSBUIBEEAKABBEE MAEBGELMR
BB EEN R FE:.

The accounting of the Acquisition involved various significant degree
of the management’s judgment and estimates in determining the
recognition of identifiable net assets at fair value at the acquisition
date.

P EIE 5T RIR T R WE B AR T E R A &S
BEFERSRERBNZESE KA 6 &M

* For identification purposes only

18 M B BLAT R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANEREEBERELEEHZARX

Our audit procedures in relation to
management’s judgment and estimates over
business combination including but not limited
to:

B EREH XSO HE REHE
ZEFBE (BETRR)

° Discussing and inquiring management
on their basis in determining the nature
of the transactions to assess the
economic resource or business process
associated with the acquisition and
thus management’s assessment of
the acquisition being accounted for as
business combination;
AmAEEESAEERS EENE
EUFHERBESTEAENRBEEIRL
E¥BBREREEREERLSKESEARK
PIVERT & PHeV T4

° Evaluation of the independent valuers’
competence, capabilities, independence
and objectivity;

HEINE R ERMERERE BN R E L

° Evaluating the appropriateness of key
assumptions including revenue growth
rate, discount rate and methodologies
used in valuation by referencing to
the applicable industry/business data
external to the Group; and
2% BEBEIINBERNITE EBH
B AEMKANERRR (21
Wi RE BRI E) RAEANRE L
K

° Assessing the appropriateness of the
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

AR AMBERREBETENGE -

We found the assessment was supported by
the available evidence. We found the disclosure
to be appropriate.
BMBERIEEEMSEEN R RME
REBRFEERE -

Y EHES
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Key audit matter
HARERERSER

Fair value measurement on contingent consideration receivables

BREARREZ L FlETE

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLHERE VB mEKM 22 -

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of contingent consideration
receivables was RMB4,578,000 and the Group recognised a loss
on fair value change of the contingent consideration receivable of
RMB7,497,000 in profit or loss.

RZZE-NFT_A=+—HB BURXARENATERAARE
4,578,000 AEBERIERTHABERIAREBZ A TELZDE
18 AR #7,497,0007T ©

The measurement of fair value of the contingent consideration
receivables involves significant degree of the management’s
judgment.

ERHAREN A FEFESRERRE 2 ERHE -
Independent external valuation has been obtained in order to
support the management’s estimates.
EREBIINBEEAZRHERRE 2 A5

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RPN EREEERERSEZAR

Our audit procedures in relation to the fair value
measurement on contingent consideration
receivables including but not limited to:
BN RAREZ AT EFEZERIR
FrBIEETRRA

Obtaining and understanding the
Company’s process regarding the
determination of fair value of contingent
consideration receivables;

BERTEHR BEAnBEBETERERKEA
REZATFERNERT:

Evaluation of the independent valuers’
competence, capabilities, independence
and objectivity;
FHEBEEMZ T B e B
NEEM

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies and techniques
used in determining the fair value of
contingent consideration receivables;
FHEAREE RS ARE AT ES
HEREREMEEE 1T
Evaluating the appropriateness of
the judgment and estimates of key
assumptions used in determining the
fair value of contingent consideration
receivables; and
HERAREERKRIAREZ A TED
RASER R < HIE KA EE 1 &
Checking, on a sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input data
used.

TR IR S P A I A BUR 2 YR I 2 AR
Mo

We found that the key assumptions were
supported by the available evidence.

BFIRA BERERCEMSEERIS -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

18 M B BLAT R
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

18 M B BLAT R

REMRERGES
(%)

s HEERAKELLSTERNRBEMN
EHER - REMSNETBE RE
EEFHEESHRBRBANEANTE
EE-MAEY BERERELERE
NEREKREEE - ZZD%%HF%M%T_EE
RAHEE M - BB 0 B2 800 &
REHEAPBERRTOEBREER
MEE HWAEBMNEREENTR RIZA
EFRTHRMANER BN EREENE
ERHENHE B H L PTEISHERAHER
A REEHHBERAEEH BF
BT REEER K

MBEHRRZEME

. HEGAHBEROZEIENR 4
BARS REREEN. U REAH
BREART AL LIMBR S RER

e i EEETERAXEKIINOMBE
FERFE D EE BT RE AR
EHMBHRERBER -RMAERSE.
EEMMITREE - HIEH MM

EAERAERE

BAEREEMN (AR BRE) FEHs S8 E
REBARERERFTHR (BREAMRE
BRI A BB R E R E KRR ETE
i o

BRI ERXER HPARMEFE
BB MR AR EBEES I E MM
BRMMABGEMERAS L ERMBLIED
BEMEMER UREERNBERT 88
B9 73 & 1 e o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
20194 F 3§

61



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Edmund with Practising Certificate number
P0O5333.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

31 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SeBEERkHEtEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® TR ARBTT

Revenue Wz 7 558,599 521,186
Cost of sales 85 & XA (492,738) (441,793)
Gross profit EF 65,861 79,393
Other income and gains H AU A N Wz 7 10,041 14,117
Impairment loss recognised in respect REEBBREBER

of allowance for credit losses, net ZREEE  NKRER

of reversal (113) (651)
Loss on fair value change of FEW S ARE 2 A TFE

contingent consideration receivables 28 EHia (7,497) =
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (19,428) (11,430)
Administrative expenses 1T X (49,175) (45,658)
Finance costs B 75K AR 9 (11,130) (10,511)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBLAT (B51R) RF (11,441) 25,260
Income tax expense Fr5fiF = 10 (4,806) (6,560)
(Loss)/profit for the year R (FR) R 11 (16,247) 18,700
Other comprehensive income Hit2mEU =
Itern that will not be reclassified TEENTHEZ

to profit or loss: HEamIEE -

Exchange differences arising on MBERRBREEE

translation of financial statements ZENZERE 523 2

Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRE2E (BE) Wi

for the year s (15,724) 18,702
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to KATEE AEN

owners of the Company FER(EFR) EZA (16,247) 18,700
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for RAREEB AEML

the year attributable to owners of EREE(EHR) kS

the Company g (15,724) 18,702
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (BE) BR 12
Basic (RMB) AR (ARE) (0.43) cents »  0.49 cents 7
Diluted (RMB) g (ARYE) (043)cents >  0.49 cents

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

A

7]

BRE < P X AR UL F SR B

B 75 ¥R 3k 2 4E K BD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e R R

As at 31 December 2019 R —ZE—N&E+-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-nE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T AREFIT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VEN & 16 92,681 98,432
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 34,467 -
Prepaid lease payments AT ERE 18 - 34,467
Intangible assets BIVEE 20 1,847 =
Goodwill S 21 5,670 -
Contingent consideration receivables FEU S ANRME 29 4,578 -
139,243 132,899
Current assets REEE
Prepaid lease payments AT E 8 18 — 936
Inventories rE 23 255,986 161,098
Trade receivables =) A& 24 177,706 234,075
Prepaid tax TET IR 1,400 -
Prepayment and other receivables ARNFEREMEYRIE 25 66,152 97,616
Fixed time deposits T HITF R 26 55,478 57,450
Bank balances and cash wITEHREE S 26 26,151 17,352
582,873 568,527
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables ERNFEREMNER o7 31,479 35,204
Accrued expenses, other payables FERT B R - HAbFER IR
and contract liabilities ke#a’ 28 15,317 6,886
Bank borrowings RITEK 29 202,300 196,930
Tax payables JEST R IE 811 1,202
250,407 240,222
Net current assets REBEEFE 332,466 328,305
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS 471,709 461,204
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Promissory notes EHBE 30 19,147 -
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEEE 31 462 =
19,609 =
Net assets EERE 452,100 461,204
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBARR R

As at 31 December 2019 R —ZE—hFE+-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZET-)N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT

Capital and reserves BEXRREE
Share capital [N 32 4,782 4,782
Reserves & 447,318 456,422
Total equity B 452,100 461,204

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2020 and are signed
on its behalf by:

HAVMBRRCHESEN _T_ZTF=A

ST HAMEYRETIE AR TRRE

2

Huang Weniji
BEXE
Director

EF

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

Yang Guang
BXx
Director

EF

BIBE < P TR UL 52 B

7 e

BF 75 R 2 KB
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Translation Statutory Share option
Share capital  Share premium reserve reserve reserve  Merger reserve  Retained profits Total equity
&3 RiEE EXffH EERE  BRERR ARG REER BREE

RVBO0  AVBOO  AMBCH  RMBODO  RVBOO  AVBOD  ANEGM  RMBOD
T ARETR  ARBTT ARETRT  ARETT ARMTI  ARETR

Asat 1 January 2018 R=E-N&-A-H 4,731 116,740 2422 37,680 5,616 81,521 191,876 440,586
Effect on initial application of HKFRS 9 BERERARANBRE
RUZEORHTE - - - - - - (989) (086)
Adjusted balance as at 1 January 2018 —F-\§-HF-8
MERRL 4,731 116,740 2,422 37,680 5,616 81,521 190,890 439,600
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - 18,700 18,700
Exchange differences arising on translation ~ BIEBREREEL 2 EHEE
of financial statements = = 2 = S = S 2
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR2EREHEE - - 2 - - - 18,700 18,702
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - 1,969 - - (1,969) -
Issue of share upon exercise of mﬁ% RER TR
share options 51 3421 - - (670) - - 2,902
Lapsed of share options BREXK - - - - (5,046) - 5,046
As at 31 December 2018 and RZE-NE+ZA=+-BER
asat 1 January 2019 —F-h%5-A-A 4,182 120,161 2424 39,649 - 81,521 212,667 461,204
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - (16,247) (16,247)
Exchange differences arising on URRENEEEVERER
translation of financial statements - - 523 - - - - 523
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AR/ (BB g
for the year o = 523 = o = (16,247) (15.724)
Transfer to statutory reserve BEETHE - - - 858 - - (858) -
Grant of share options R ERE - - - - 6,620 - - 6,620
As at 31 December 2019 R=E-hE+=-A=1-H 4182 120,161 2947 40,507 6,620 81,521 195,562 452,100
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Notes:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEREB R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

The statutory reserve fund is non-distributable and the transfer to this
reserve is determined by the board of directors in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). This reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses
and increase capital upon approval from the relevant government
authorities.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options
over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for each period
is determined by spreading the fair value of the share options over the
relevant vesting period (if any) and is recognised in other operating
expenses with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve.

The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired as a result
of the reorganisation as fully explained in the paragraph headed
“Reorganisation” in the section headed “History and Corporate
Structure” of the prospectus of the Company dated 3 February 2015
and the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange thereof.

B3

EERBETEAK MBEZBFEERHE
FERBEPEARLNE ([HE])AEREE
BREABREBET - EEARRNE RILER:
ZEREA AR R B RERIZME A

BrEfasEnrRRBRR L AREBR
REMIAS I A AT SR 2 R 2 AP E
H@eBEDERBREREHABZAFE
REBEMzeRNERRAREES (W0
BB BREANTFETAEE  TREME
EH S RER MBI AT AR

BHREBEERAAREHA-ZT—AF A
“HZHERERIELMARZRRE] —HE
Bl —BR2EEESAMKENERRN
B AT B B AR 2 ] 7 AR % S IR T AT )
BAHE 2 HHERE-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—F-NF —F-N\F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T ARET T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K% EZE2HERE

(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (E518) m A (11,441) 25,260
Adjustments for: P
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEHE 20 120 =
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &1~ 10 & 278 # $4 - 936
Finance costs BF 75 A AN 9 11,130 10,511
Bank interest income RITA B WA 7 (1,486) (592)
Depreciation of property, plant and M RE REETE
equipment 16 5,954 6,172
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FrEREENE 17 936 =
Government grants BT 4 B 7 (2,656) (1,224)
Impairment loss recognised in respect REHEEBEEERAT
of financial assets under expected JERMEERR
credit loss model, net 2 REREFE 113 651
Imputed interest income of i W R AR
promissory note receivables ZHEEFE 7 - (3,131)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment Bl SEc 10 35
Loss on fair value change of JEWHARE 2 AFE
contingent consideration receivables HE) v EiE 22 7,497 =
Equity-settled share-based N E RN &
payment expenses ER 2R 6,620 =
Operating cash flows before EBEESEEA
movements in working capital PIRREREGRE 16,797 38,618
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEMm TR (94,888) 43,734
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables & 5 E U FUIA
B () 66,453 (81,362)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayment TEfTFIE R H AL
and other receivables MR IR A, ($En) 33,665 (38,588)
Decrease in trade and bills payables B S RNFIAR
FER =R (8,423) (33,345)
(Increase)/decrease in accrued JEStE R - HAtb
expenses, other payables and ERNFREREHEE
contract liabilities (#m) R 2,374 (1,700)
Cash generated from/(used in) RSB (FTA)
operations B 15,978 (72,643)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMEH (6,627) (3,728)
Net cash generated from/(used in) ReESEE RS, (FFA)
operating activities HEFHE 9,351 (76,371)
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

REFHZRERE

WEEM R BB KR im

2019
—E-Nf

RMB’000
AR®T T

Notes
B 5

2018
—F-N\F

RMB’000
N

financial statements.

g

equipment 16 (202) (1,141)
Placement of fixed time deposits 15 B BR T X (55,478) (57,450)
Withdrawal of fixed time deposits REUE BifE R 57,450 23,101
Bank interest received BUERITH B 1,486 592
Repayment of promissory note EEEYE N ERE

receivables - 34,747
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WREM B AR EA

a subsidiary ZREmEFE 34 (2,773) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - -HE X

plant and equipment B FTISRIA 9 54
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETERE (FrA)

investing activities ReFHE 492 97)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETEH2EERE

Proceeds from new bank borrowings IR TR KA TS KB 207,600 223,580

Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (201,730) (190,130)

Interest paid BAF A (10,182) (10,511)

Government grants received B WB AT 47 B 2,656 1,204

Proceeds from exercise of TR BRI 2 FiS 5/ TE

share options - 2,902
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEER (FTA)

financing activities SRS FE (1,656) 27,065
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeERESEEY

cash equivalents i, R ) R 8,187 (49,403)
Cash and cash equivalents at REHOzRER

the beginning of the reporting period RE&%EEY 17,352 66,753
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEEZSBHTE 612 D
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of BREHRZREER

the reporting period HEEEY
Bank balances and cash RITEEBR MRS 26,151 17,352

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  Fff k& 2 Bt s # Ak Itk S 47 & BF 7§ 3R R 2 48k 30
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
12 June 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company
is Jicheng Investment Limited a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) with limited liabilities and
ultimate controlled by Mr. Huang Wenji (“Mr. Huang”).

The address of the registered office is Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The
address of the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong is Room 904, Loon Kee Building, 275 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is engaged
in investment holding while the principal subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacture and sales of umbrellas and
the relevant products.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) since most of the subsidiaries are operating
in RMB environment and the functional currency of most of the
subsidiaries is RMB.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the current
year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with

HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment
HKAS 19 or Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (continued)

Except as described below, the application of other new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial positions and
consolidated financial performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases (‘HKAS
17”), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(FRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard
to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts
which already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance
with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing
whether a contract contains a lease.

Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2019.

FER R RAEERT &R MBE R
EER(HERMBHREER])
(%)

TR AN £F 2 58 ) 4 RR A9 R RT R AR AE T
ERMBREER (&)

B NPT E S AR R R R H A 3
AIRBER BN B REENHAEE
REFRBEFEZHEMBARRE
BUBRAR SRS EETBRERA
HRBEYEEATE-

BB BHRELERFI6HEE
AEERAFREREREEMBRE
R F165 - BB M H IR E ERIFE165%
BREBEBEFERNEITRHEE ([FE
SRFERIE17R]) RRERE-

HEZT#
AEBDEBRRTRE A REHE
REBGHERENTHR REL (BRM
BHRERBEZES) REBFIRELE
LHELERHERNSAENGHRE
A& B MBS HRELERNFE165E - L&Y
FRYRBFNABEHENSHNERZ
ER A NEBIYEEHNFERNE
RERBHNEEREZED-

R —_F—NF—A—HHHEEKTIH
ERNENME AEERFEELR
BESHERREBEEEMBRELERE
16SATE R ERAEENTESE -

BRIFEOBARRGEREBMEE &
AAEE TS EHNFEAREH-

fEAAA
AEBBRPEREBSTIEREERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE - &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

—“NE+ZA=+—HLFE

FEFH%E%‘T&%‘%%%‘T@‘ Bt 1% 3
HA([ERBUBHREER])

(continued) ( &)
NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY RAEFEEREIE R REEET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (continued) ERAMKBREER (&)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent
relevant to the respective lease contracts:

relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous
by applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets as an alternative of impairment
review;

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application; and

excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at
1 January 2019 comprises the following:

BB BHEEREI6HHEE (&)
TERAEN (B)
REEMREEREEMERELERE6
S RIERI B WA AEBEIREIRM
EREREMRIBEFEGHEAFEITH
DHERREHERRSHEANHERL
Tﬂflﬁﬁﬁ—l—ﬂ—fﬁ%ﬁﬁ&i-

i. BERERESEITEREITHE

A BEREAEENERS —
WEFHLTE FHHEHERRE
s

i. BETHHEEHNXNEXERAH
'E+121IHW BEZinEJ’:E R

i. MREXERBHESERESE
B S BR ¥ 20 RS o

EREEENR_-F—
HeRREERRE:

NE—RF—

RMB’000
ARBETIT

Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases

RIER & B IS 2R
&

recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 FleR ARG ERE
EHENEREE F -
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments (note) BRMEEFEEF S
(BtsE) 35,403
Right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—-—HA—BH
EREEE 35,403
By class: =R
Leasehold land HELH 35,403
Note: B 5

Upfront payments for leasehold land in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) for own used properties were classified
as prepaid lease payments as at 31 December 2018. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the current and non-current portion
of prepaid lease payments amounting to RMB936,000 and
RMB34,467,000 respectively were reclassified to right-of-use
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. FEAHFIIRKLEITEEHMBR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) HEEA(EEMBHREED])
(continued) (#&)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY R RS 4 Y R] RABERT
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (continued) ERMBBREER (&)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) EBHBREERFEI6HHE ()

As a lessee (continued) TEREFAN ()

Transition to HKFRS 16 does not have impact on retained BEEREMBHREEFIGRERN
profits as at 1 January 2019. T-NF—A—BORE RN ELE o
The following adjustments were made to the amounts RZE—NF—HA—BNEEHHIR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position KBRS ECELATHE - RXE
as at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not affected by the BB BEEVTERELAN-

changes have not been included.

Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported as at HKFRS 16 as at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
SRR R=Z—hEF

—E-N\E§ —A—HRE
+=A ERUBRE
Sqr—= R SE1655 1Y
SRR E AR BRE{E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T

Non-current assets kRBEE

Right-of-use assets EREEE = 35,403 35,403
Prepaid lease payments FENHEENRIE 34,467 (34,467) =
Current assets REEE

Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE 936 (936) =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  between an Investor and and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

2 Effective for business combination for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (continued)

In addition to the above new and revised HKFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued
in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2020.

The directors anticipate that application of new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
by the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

FERFE] RAEETERMBR
EER(ERMBREER])
(#&)

& 98 45 1B 18] R 25 2B H7 R R AR S RT
ERMBREERN (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for contingent consideration
receivables that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of
HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of
Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results
of the valuation technique equal the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.%'T“A Ff 75 % 3% B =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE - T —WF+ A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)
(continueq)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) ¥RE6t (&)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as gain on bargain purchase.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting period and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting period, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

80 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
BRI AR AR

BEDREEERE BKRET ZER
FEE R R & B B A SR BT R U
TRBZBRERFE(INE) ZBER
B W iE B HA AT RS AT 58RI B A B AT
FREZFRIEZHTE -HMEEHF
& B R EERMAERE
ZEBBEBACEERE RUBETZE
{A] JE 42 P e 2 & B I MR A R BT AR UK
BARAZBRERATE(WE) 28N
HBHHBO MR EaTRIASRERE
Yo zs o

EAEERERAHBEEE2RERS
ARAREBLYR  RAREBIRIE
BEZAFENE LIEBEKAFE
FrEEREL —BHINE-FAE W%#
EHPFARZIAREZLAFEE

LUB A TR - #z%ﬁﬂﬁm
ER[EFE8E] CFERBEKER R
A—F)ABRSRKERETEZS
BERERZENERMER ZHE

TEEBREAENRRABRNIARELZ
HESTREBURRIARENF D
B-nBEARBEZAARETENER
BREHMEENTE MEAREERN#ER
AARR - DBREERRBZIHANRE
Fﬁéﬁi%ﬁéﬁﬁgzﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬁ
RN E S E RN R RER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (the “CGUs”) (or
group of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the cash-generating
unit within the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis
of the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of
and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the property,
plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or
“prepaid lease payments” (before application of HKFRS 16)
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (continueq)

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with finite useful lives are recognised
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
LEASES

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of premises that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continueq)
LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHFEME (&)
(continueq)
IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, ME BERRE FAKEER

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUSs.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group
of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

88  CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
BRI AR AR

BREE (BEKRIN REE)

A E e B RE A FERELEKRAER
MR EEREEME TR SE ¥
B E R EER - JHER AN AR IR R A5k
AARKREREMBEEARE  M&KMR
RIBEIR K RMRBITH IS H S ERFREER
BE(XBRcELEM) (ARKRRE
MEBEFHREHE) FERR 2 FF (-

WA EE (KRS ELEM) AT
Ae@EINEREE MEE (LR
ELEM) REERDEREAKRESHE-
RAREREE-HEENREERSES
BUMMEEER—MOLEEEMS -
AEEEK - HACELEMNRER
(BEIEEZRcELEMARNND
REEI N EXEENKREE)H
ZARCELEUM AN E S B LR
RO R EREE  BERBESE K
DB NEPREMEE (EM) WERE
BE-HRUABRBREEZREERERR
ook EZ BNk ZReEEEME
R EAMEE - B ERREE LR D
EERRAFEBREEKRAN (MAFE)
EREE(MAE) BT =FHIR
BE-BANEEEENREBSESR
AR PID R EZEMNRAZRTELE
3 48 75! B L fth & E - R 1B /&5 18 B B 0 4B
R

WREBENERELD ZEE (LR
CELBEMNRSELEMAR)HORK
EEMENEELERT AR AR SR
BREEMOETAETSBBEE (X
ReELBEUNReELEMHAR)R
BEFENEERBERREBETEN
FREE - B DR EE IR N 1B s i

7
s ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE - T —WF+ A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)
(continueq)
INVENTORIES 7E

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # = —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continueq)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # = —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “loss on fair value change of contingent consideration
receivables” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (‘ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables, fixed time deposits and bank
balances) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
end of the reporting period as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continueq)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(it

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continueq)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial assets is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # = —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, accrued
expenses, other payables, bank borrowings and promissory
notes are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

.%'T“A Ff 75 % 3% B =

—hET_A=1T—RHLFE
TEESTBRME &)

SRMIA (&)

EY TV .2 220 )

B A2 A
SHAE (REESENRERENE
1 RSB A EALREN BUB  SRIT K
RAH ) B AR A E R 8 AR
RS E -

HIERTHRE
EHEERASENETHERK. HS(E%%E'J
R - AEBeRIBERATHAFB K
JJ:ﬁanZiraﬂi%%ZEEETEE@EHjZJE
NREZEZEZR DRERER-

Bt EEREHER
EEAREEERAETAIRITEEHED
BReE KtEAFHEEEEENF
REREEMEEAER FHEHESR
BEHESRBERNGEUBRAXE
I 558 o

ReRREEEY

BekReFEEBYARARTHERRTFER
T EFRRRITREMSBEERNEH
TR A RABERZRSE MRS BE
REEXBEEDRRNDRE MG
BE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
20194 F 3§

99



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE - T —WF+ A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

o
2
=
N

B4 BB TR HER A - D
IR R T OB 0 B S
5 [HEHL B R

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

pm)
]:l

B o8B
B
0

o’ m

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised

BHOBEHEARNEBIRE (—4
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J& #) B R H3E R 155 T B P ) 52

over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

BAKEEY FFREREILRE
RSB B FrIREE F 5s

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the °
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

AEEZEQRIRKB(C—EE
E ZEENAKEBNRATP
YR 3k

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset °
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with o AEEHBEHNVRELEHAE
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an BERARMNEE BAEEHE
enforceable right to payment for performance completed SEEKBHZHIBEEB AR

to date. - ¥ I

BRI WERE P ESHEEE MRS
72 Il R By RE AR,

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer EHNEEERAESEACE R IR E
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has (SR EFKIEINE) - A EEml iR
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) BTREZEG-

from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # = —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for
those goods to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good before
that good is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good by another
party. In this case, the Group does not control the specified
good provided by another party before that good is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it
recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission
to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods to be provided by the other party.

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the customers. The normal
credit term is up to 30 =150 days upon delivery.

BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
GOVERNMENT GRANT

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEME (&)

(continueq)
TAXATION (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate
trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred are vested in accordance with the
scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits schemes operated by the government
of the PRC is to make the specified contributions under the
schemes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE - T —WF+ A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEZ:HBEHEME (&)
(continueq)
SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED TO CONSULTANTS 5 B RS B B AR A

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets).

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. When inflow
is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continueq)
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(viy the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between the Group and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 4.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors has made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL VERSUS AGENT CONSIDERATION

The Group engages in sales of umbrellas and the relevant
products. The Group concluded that the Group acts as the
principal for such transactions as it controls the specified
good before it is transferred to the customer after taking
into consideration indicators such as the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the goods.
The Group has inventory risk. When the Group satisfies the
performance obligation, the Group recognises trading revenue
in the gross amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled as specified in the contracts.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recognised revenue relating to trading of umbrella
and the relevant products amounted to approximately
RMB558,599,000 (2018: RMB521,186,000).

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 4. BB EtHE RASIAEEM

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible asset are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying amount of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including
right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the assets belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the end of each
reporting period or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
the CGU is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. An estimation of the value in use of the CGU
involves estimating the future cash flows expected to arise
from its continuing use and applying the appropriate discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risk specific to the CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 4.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Fair value measurement of contingent consideration receivables

As part of the identifiable asset acquired in business
combination as set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, profit guarantee is valued at fair value as at
the acquisition date with the best estimates of the future
outcome of the future events. Where the profit guarantee
meets the definition of a financial asset, it is subsequently
re-measured to fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The determination of the fair value is based on the expected
adjustment on consideration paid. The key assumption takes
into consideration the probability of meeting each profit target.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired
are assessed for ECL individually. In addition, the Group uses
provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade receivables
which are individually insignificant. The provision matrix is
based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At the
end of each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining provision for
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises tax liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year
in which such determination is made.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bills payables, bank borrowings and promissory notes,
net of bank balances and cash, and equity attributable to the
owner of the Company, which comprises issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as the issue of new debts or
the redemption of the existing debts.

The Group is not subject to any external imposed capital
requirements.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE - T —WF+ A =+—HIFE

EXERERE

AEBEEEEAUABRASENER
ARELE WEBBIER RERSS
ﬁ%%ﬂx%m?ﬁﬁ*ﬁ@#ﬁb’z AEBEZERE
REEBEFERFTIE -

AEENEARBEREEHRZFR (21
ENZEE - RITERLARLER) Mk
RITEBREASARKRRREE ARG
s (BRERTHRALMER)

EXTHRAERNRBE -ERZBEH
—H EFEREAKNAREEER
MAERR NEERRBEES ZHEE
EREBIMNRE BHITHRREITH
ERHBOREGEE FTHEEREAR

AREEBAEETEMIMEIEINNE KRR
}?o

RBERRNEERBELERNOT:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT
Total debts (note) B a%E (M) 252,397 229,795
Less: Bank balances and cash W ERITEBR RIS (26,151) (17,352)
Net debt BER#ER 226,246 212,443
Total equity G e e 452,100 461,204
Net debt to equity ratio FEEEREE 50% 46%
Total debts to equity ratio BE BRI E 56% 50%

Note: Total debts comprises bills payables, bank borrowings and
promissory notes as detailed in notes 27, 29 and 30 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)

(B)

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ERMT A
(A)

SRMITENER

2019 2018
—EB-NEF T )\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBETT

Financial assets ERMEE
Amortised cost SH AR 288,851 356,975

Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEEFABRD

SREE 4,578 =

Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost 5 AL R 268,082 238,717

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND B) HH¥EREEBEEZERBEE

POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
contingent consideration receivables, trade receivables,
other receivables, fixed time deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and bills payables, accrued expenses, other
payables, bank borrowings and promissory notes. Details
of the financial instruments for the Group are disclosed in
respective notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases
denominated in United States dollar (*USD”), Japanese
Yen (“JPY”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”), which are
different from the functional currencies of the group
entities carrying out the transactions.

Also, certain trade receivables, bank balances and
cash, trade and bills payables, accrued expenses and
other payables are denominated in USD, JPY and HKD
which are currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities. The carrying amounts
of the foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities of the Group at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

6. E®IHA#)

(B)

BEEREEZERRBE (&)

5

B R
AEBEANUEXT([ET]) B
(MBxhHRET(ETDFEZ
SNEEE ZEEETRANAEHE
ERETRH 2T -

BESh BT B S EUGRIE  RITA
#EAS BEHERNRARENER
%~ AT B R R ELAD FE A5 SRIR T IA
X -BREKkETE - XT A
TERAETAEFHASEER Y
BEEH - RE BN S IR AIMNE
AEZEREENERREZK
E{ET :

Assets Liabilities
BE =K

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hAEFE T N\F ZE-hAFE —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT AR%®TR ARETT
UsD v 152,928 149,398 177 421
JPY = 13,500 37,915 47 =
HKD BIT 714 1,323 5,445 1,885

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the directors continuously
monitor the related foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of USD,
JPY and HKD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% for all periods increase or decrease in USD, JPY
and HKD against the functional currency. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax (loss)/profit where USD, JPY and
HKD strengthen 5% against the functional currency.
For a 5% weakens of USD, JPY and HKD against the
functional currency, there would be an equal or opposite
impact on the profit and other equity and the balances
below would be negative.

Impact on (loss)/profit for the year

uUsD ETT
JPY Bt
HKD BT

TWMIA %)

BEEREEZEERBE (£)

TS mE (&)

EXmE (&)

BB
AEBTIEmMEXT BTRET
SN LB

TREINABEHEANEESE X
T ATRBTENEER A ES
B2 {E5% < BRRE R 15 - 6% JhAE
ZEEABAR2WMINERRIK
RZBRELE IRREEEY
SMNEIER IR AL B E) 2 BT Mh o &
RESTEBRFEAINEHEZ
AXNE®ER IRIREHR
FLOMNE IE K5% 2 HB)HEEIEN -
THZIEBRRRET BTRAET
R B THES% - BT (B
8) aAMEmexx BT kg
TLRA I BEE M B (B5% B - 7 ¥
MEEpERASEERRZY
E MUATESRBEREH

2019
—B-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBET T

5,728 5,687

504 1,422

(177) (21)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 {15

20194 F 3§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continueq)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed time deposits and fixed rate bank borrowings
(see notes 26 and 29 for details respectively). The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary action when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank balances (see note 26 for details of
these balances). The exposure to the interest rate risk for
variable rate bank balances is insignificant as the bank
balances have a short maturity period.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables, fixed time deposits and
bank balances. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk, which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
arising from the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group deposited fixed time deposits and bank
balances with approved and reputable banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may cause
the Group’s right with respect to fixed time deposits
and bank balances held to be delayed or limited. The
directors monitor the credit rating of these banks on an
ongoing basis, and consider that the Group’s exposure
to credit risk as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018 were minimal.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)

For other receivables, the directors make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The directors believe that
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balances of other receivables.

Trade receivables of the Group consist of a large number
of customers and spread across geographical areas.

The Group’s policy to manage credit risk is to deal only
with credit worthy counterparties. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has formulated
a credit policy and, delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
take.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances based on
provision matrix. The trade receivables are grouped
under a provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for
its customers because these customers consist of a large
number of customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired).
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 6.

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND (B)

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueqd)

As at 31 December 2019

SRMIA#)

BEEREEZERRBE (&)

=B R R B EFE (E)
R-ZB-HhF+=-A=t+—H

Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
FEHEEX RE#E EEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
BaL AR¥T T AR T
Not yet due i) A< 185 5 - 92,766 -
1-90 days past due B HEAI1 = 90K 2.01 86,690 1,750
179,456 1,750

As at 31 December 2018

RZE-—NF+=-A=+—H

Expected  Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
TEHA e 1B X FREEE BB
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Bkt ARBET T ARBET T
Not yet due i A< 180 B - 129,711 =
1-90 days past due BHEAI1E90K 1.54 106,001 1,637
235,712 1,637

The expected loss rate are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group provided approximately RMB1,750,000
(2018: RMB651,000) impairment allowance for trade

receivables, based on the provision matrix.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the

simplified approach.

As at 1 January 2018
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9

Impairment loss recognised

6. £@MIH®)
B) HEEMEEBEZEREE (&)

EERBRBEE (&)
HE-_Z—-—NF+=ZA=1+—H
IEFE NEBENBEER IR
BSRWFEBRNBRERBEOAR
#1,750,000C (ZZE—N\F: AR
#651,0007T ) °

TREIIZE(OERE 5 IR
HREANEHBHEEERES -

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
EHEHBE

BER
(EEERE)
RMB’000
ARBTT

RZE—NF—HA—H -
FERT BN HREERFESR 2

A 986
EERBEEE 651

As at 31 December 2018 and as at 1 January 2019

R_ZE—-—N\F+_A=+—HK

—T-hAF—-HA—H 1,637
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 1,750
Impairment loss reversed VERE =Rk E (1,637)
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZB-h&E+=A=+—H 1,750

The Group categories trade or other receivables for
write off when a customer or debtor fails to make
contractual payments. Where trade or other receivables
have been written off, the Group continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable
due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in

profit or loss.

The Group does not have any other significant
concentrations of credit risk. The exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

AEEREPREHAREEL
BRI R 5 s E 8 WK
FHETT D BAEMEH - M E 5
S E Al B GRIR - AEE SR EE
1T AT BT B A W [ 3 B ) 8 Uk
A o Y @ - BRI B RS o

AEBEYEEMBEAETEER

ponEEERRERFERRE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
20194 F 3§

119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in

cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2019, the Group
has available unutilised short-term bank loan facilities of
approximately RMB54,000,000 (2018: RMB66,500,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The

6.

SRMIA#)

(B)

BEEREEZERRBE (&)

REERDESRR ~AKEER
REFREMASFEDNER
BERREABMNAKREZEZK
FoRBERERERDZIHE-E
BEERRTERZHABRL
R A BRI

REBKERITERIEARDE
THEEBRFRE - R_T—NAF+=
A=+—HB A&£EBEABHNRY
AEBRTERRENBARE
54,000,000C (ZE—NFE: AR
#66,500,0007T ) °

TRBREBTEEHRFIASE
BETESREBBZHRTEOD
HEI - AR IR BEA K EAN K
ZEFEHRERABEIARTR
RenEMmE - 2R BREMNER

AeHERE -

table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

As at 31 December 2019
R=ZB-n&+=A=1+-H

On demand Total
or within undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2-5 years cash flows amount
RERHRN RTRRE
1F R 2E5F BB fREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE AR®BTR AR®BTR AR®T:R
Non-derivative financial EFTEEMEE
liabilities
Trade and bills payables BHEMNFIER
eSS 31,479 - 31,479 31,479
Accruals expense and JEETE A R HA
other payables FERTFRIE 14,656 - 14,656 14,656
Bank borrowings RITIEN 202,300 - 202,800 202,800
Promissory notes AR EE - 21,843 21,843 19,147
Total BEr 248,935 21,843 270,778 268,282
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

(€)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

¢RI E (&)
B) HEEMEEBEZEREE (&)

mEBELREE (E)
As at 31 December 2018
RZF-N\F+ZA=+—H

On demand Total
or within  undiscounted Carrying
1 year cash flows amount
BRERYRN RTRBER
1567/ 2R AREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTE ARBTE ARETE
Non-derivative financial ETESLBAE
liabilities
Trade and bills payables ZoRNTERENZER 35,204 35,204 35,204
Accruals expense and FERTE B R EA
other payables PR FIA 6,583 6,583 6,583
Bank borrowings RITEK 196,930 196,930 196,930
Total #st 238,717 238,717 238,717

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages independent qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the directors at the
end of each reporting period to explain the cause of
fluctuations in fair value of the asset.

) EMIANAFE

A FER AEEREFAT
SR BEBE  REDNSE &
AER AEEEZRBYAER
HEMETHE - EEEEZAE
ROMNEREMERSIE BILEE
EHERMEZER 2B AE EE
BN & W& HRFEEERA
R UABRBEEAFERS 2R

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 6.

(€)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date;

o Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are input for which market
data are not available; and

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

Level 1
E—&
RMB’000
AR¥ TR
As at 31 December 2019 R=B-N&F
+=ZA=+-—H
Fair value on a recurring basis ~— %A% = BE B H
AFE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFERA
BalemEE
— Contingent consideration — R ARE

receivables -

SRMIA#)

(€)

RMB’000
AR®T R

EBMITANDFEE)

TREJNAEERHFEMRIZLE
FEEFENERIANAFE"
HTVREBW B RS ERF13HR
AFEAEMATEDR=ZAR
FERE R FEFESDOER
T2 2 {58 B0 P R 8 A B HY
ERUEREEZMETNT

s FARMBEEEAE-R
wWABFENRAFE AIA
REEXABENFTERHR
BTG R EHBRE:

s F_AME:ERFE_AH
AEFENRFE BT
BEE—ANAUEBEBAERR
WEERAERTAIBEREA
BE-TABRBAEATS
BT RANEAR: &

s FZAMEEREATH
BRGAEFENQTE-

Level 2
-t

Total

st
RMB’000
ARB TR

Level 3
B=M
RMB’000
AR¥T

= 4,578 4,578

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the date of
the events or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E — &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(€)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were
no transfers between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into
or out of level 3.

The following table presents the changes in fair value of
contingent consideration receivables which are classified
as level 3 category for the year ended 31 December
2019:

RMB’000
ARBTT

6.

BERBRENE

—NE+=AS+-AILFE

TWMIA %)

(€)

TBMTANDIFEE)

BE_T-NFT-_A=+—H
LHFE F-RAF_H2ELE
ERAFEIER TLEEAR
BHE=H-

TREJINBE-_FT-NE+-A
=t HLEFE 2BRE=HZ
M AR EN R FEZES:

As at 1 January 2018, as at 31 December 2018 and R—_ZE—N\F—F—H
as at 1 January 2019 -z /\¢+ A=+—H
—h&—A—H =
Avrising in acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) MQE%M#%/AETFﬁéi (H$5E34) 14,232
Compensation from profit guarantee ﬂ HIRBRE (2,157)
Loss arising on change in fair value N EEBEENEE (7,497)
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+=A=+—H 4,578

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

BFHE=RAFETEHNEH

Valuation Significant unobservable  Relation of significant

techniques input

EXART
fEE R BRaA

Contingent consideration Monte Carlo
receivables Simulation method
FEW S AR (E SERRREE AT

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the management
work closely with International Valuation Limited (“IVL”") to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The management reports the findings
to the directors at the end of each reporting period to
explain the cause of fluctuations in fair value of the asset.

Expected net profit

unobservable inputs to fair value
EXRTH

B3 PN

AFEREF

The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to
the expected net profit

AV ERERBHEF A EE

A EEN R FER 2 ERE
R BERAR (THRFEHEAR
AADEREE BYBEMRE
i RZEAZBAB EEER
EREPRAEZERATER
DB EENFEKE 2 REA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(C) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the above fair value are disclosed

above.

Fair value loss on contingent consideration receivables
are separated disclosed in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other

than fair value

Except as disclosed below, the directors consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

6.

SRMIA#)

(€)

EBMITANDFEE)

FHE=RLAFEHSEHEHN
(&)

BE LR ATFERERNMBER
fily 70 ¥ A B H) A RE B B R £ XX

& o

ERHAREBH R FEBEREG
ERGREMETEKEERTES
7R °

WHEAFESEHNEHEER
BEHRFHE

BT XATREEIN EERBNER
EMBBRRTIEIANEREER
ERMABENREEREEL A FER

++

o

As at 31 December 2018
R=-Z—N\F
+=—A=+—H
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
FREE AFE BREE NSO
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARM®TRT ARETT ARETT

As at 31 December 2019

Promissory notes A 19,147 20,017 = =

The fair value of promissory notes is classified as level EEREBENAFLERATFESSR
3 category in fair value hierarchy which have been PEBEAE =R ENENRMUE
determined in accordance with present value method ReRmeEnMBREREEMEE
based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most REENHBAEARBTZHTF
significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the EERBRAALER R

credit risk of counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. WERHEMBARKE
()  REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS () BFAHWZH

2019 2018
S S G

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

Sales of umbrellas and THE RS M AABE®
the relevant products 558,599 521,186

2019 2018
—g-nE T N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTIT

Timing of revenue recognition RSN

A point in time PRy e B 558,599 521,186
Transaction allocated to the remaining performance HEFAHNHF BN EREF S
obligation for contracts with customers BHX S
The Group has applied the practical expedient in AEBCEERRRABERH
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contract for EENFERBEABREEL
umbrella and the relevant products such that the Group FISRFI2IRPNERERL
does not disclose information about revenue that the b BAREERE &Y ERHR
Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining B—FIUTHRERBEESD
performance obligations under the contract for sales of HESNFHNFBRBEAORER K
umbrella and the relevant products that had an original SETeREEEAEB G
expected duration of one year or less. EUE W 55 Y B R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 7. WERHEMBARKES (4)

(I) OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (I EHiBWAR%zE

2019 2018
—g-nE  —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT

Bank interest income RITH EHA 1,486 592
Government grants (note a) HATHE B (Mf5Ea) 2,656 1,224
Exchange gain, net P& 5 Wz 558 5,889 8,887
Imputed interest on promissory notes  F& WUF H RIBHEE F &
receivables - 3,131
Others Hth 10 283
10,041 14,117
Note: B 5
(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, government @ BEZZE-—-NAF+ZA=+-—
grants of approximately RMB2,656,000 (2018: BIEFE BWERZERFHEB
RMB1,224,000) were received, where the Group had #B ANR#2,656,0007T (=&
fulfilled the relevant criteria, in respect of certain research —N\F: ARM1,224,0007T) -
and development projects. These were no unfulfilled HE AEEE/FEE THEER
conditions or contingencies relating to these government B 2 AE R4 - B ER A2 F T
grants. HWE B BN RERIGHEREA
ESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in a single operating segment, the
manufacture and sales of umbrellas and the relevant products.
Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker (the “CODM”). The CODM is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the board of directors. No
segment assets, liabilities and other segment information in
the measure of Group’s segment result and segment assets
are presented as the information is not reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

PRODUCT INFORMATION

The Group has been engaged in manufacturing and sales of
POE umbrella, nylon umbrella and umbrella parts. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue by product category is as follows:

AREBRKEE—DH BRENHEER
ENERER KEDHBIIRERHET
TELERRE([TBEERRE])
ZABRE-—BRZHAAEHR-BEDIR
BREHERENHRBEZERLER
REFOAREFE FEAKEZDH
RENRDMEERY B2 DHEE
BEREMDBER  LIARLER
BERDERRBFHAOEIELERRKE
BEEEER -

EmEHR
AEBNERERHEPOERNE EF
MR ERETEMF - ANEEIREMEH
Sz WEDITAT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTT

POE umbrella POE /% 119,801 177,148
Nylon umbrella JEBE M2 178,806 184,676
Umbrella parts MR T4 259,992 159,362
558,599 521,186
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuec) 8. oHEHR &)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION i & & B
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, accordingly, REH 7 ZEMATE JA & 275
no geographical information about the Group’s non-current EBRASBEIERDEENDEER 1%
assets has been presented. An analysis of the Group’s revenue BB AEEREIIBEL 2 W
from external customers presented by geographical location is ER 2 o TsFaan T

detailed below:

2019 2018
—B-nE  —T)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Japan =N 167,572 213,057
PRC M 91,345 133,854
Cambodia R 173,760 156,822
Europe B 29,742 3,849
Republic of Korea & 39,011 8,043
Republic of the Philippines JERE 46,769 =
Other Asian countries =N [T 4,172 5,480
Others H 6,228 81
558,599 521,186

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS EREXEEFZER

Details of the customers individually representing 10% or more BEREAEBKZFRI0% KA LZEEZ

of the Group's revenue are as follows: FIEMT

2019 2018
—E-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Customer A ZEA 101,101 130,690
Customer B ®FB 94,739 127,425
Customer C (note i) EFC (&L 79,021 N/A 7T~ i FA
Customer D (note i) FFD (MaEi) N/A T3 FA 70,354
Except disclosed above, no other customers contributed 10% bR EXFr#FEEIN RREFEHRER
or more to the Group’s revenue for both years. HEFEMAEEKZR10% KA L
Notes: B 5
0] Revenue derived from Customer C did not contribute over 10% 0] REBEE_T—N\F+_A=+—H1
of revenue of the Group during the year ended 31 December FEREBEPCHKGEIL REARE
2018. WFE10% KA F
(i)  Revenue derived from Customer D did not contribute over 10% iy REBEEZZE-—hhF+-_A=+—81
of revenue of the Group during the year ended 31 December FEREZEFDMR ST RIGEARE
2019. W 2510% A | o

128 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PEERIERAR AR



9.

10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on:

9. MR

THREZHBFX

2019
—B-NF

2018
et BT
RMB’000
AREF T

RMB’000
AR®T R

— bank borrowings —IRITIERK 10,499 10,511
— promissory notes (note 30) — L EE (5E30) 631 =
11,130 10,511
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FiBHAX

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBT T

PRC Corporate Income Tax PR EMER

— current tax — BVEAR 18 4,836 7,426
— over-provision in respect of prior years =~ — i@t FEBEEEE - (866)
4,836 6,560

Deferred tax credit (note 31) EEF AR % (MI5E31) (30) =
4,806 6,560

M

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7)
Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law
on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

REFRESHERRBREABEEZ
MAIRER - AEBBAMRMN T
HERELEBRLES 2B
i

ERUEER_ZT—-/N\F=H
ZT—HBBE-T—tERB (L
F1) (75 RO E = ([Z &)
ER]) I ANG AR - 5% 1k
PERR-_F-—NF=A=FTAN
TIE -RBENSHMAES & ER
SEERKIZ825% 2T X3tk
ME2EEBTHMBRIE A AIZ
16.5% Z B R pLiBB2E BAETZ
i M AR - AT A M AR
BB 2 R EE R N A
1216.5% 2 T R AR I8 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

10.

B 5 ¥ 3 M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE - &

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuea)

(i)

(continued)

The directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made

—“NE+ZA=+—HLFE

10. FRBHIRAX ()

(i) (&)

EERR BRMEHMARSG Y
RZEBBGEEMBHRRLES
REE-A MEFENFTBEN
BHRBREF ERBEN 216.5%
iHE

MRZMEFEARELRRNE

for both years as the Group’s income neither arises in, BEANBESEMBA  BWARE
nor is derived from, Hong Kong. BENETIELEE -

RIEPBRCEMESRERSERN
BEEAERIED PENB AR
ZMEFE R R H25% o

(i) Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax and (iii)
Implementation Regulation of the Corporate Income Tax
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both

years.
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FARGERAYEGEERREMEZE
(loss)/profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit Wask 2 BRBAT (B18) % F AR a0
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: D
2019 2018
—E-hF —T—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®ET R AR T T
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (B518) % A (11,441) 25,260
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable BB ERE R AR
to the jurisdictions concerned MEFERTIE (1,812) 6,343
Tax effect of: f)ﬁx@’ Z
Income not taxable for tax purpose BAERBTBA (371) (1,218)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 7~ 7] #1554 5 5% 4,818 2,301
Estimated tax loss not recognised EE R AT HIEEE 2,171
Over-provision in respect of prior years &1 & Z iB5E BB = (866)
Income tax expense for the year FANFBRAS 4,806 6,560
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Salaries and allowances (excluding

1. F£R (F#8)
FERN(BR) SRFENR (BT

it

PR IREFH

FE LR (TEREEMS)

2019
—E-hE

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARBFIT

RMB’000
AR®T R

directors’ emoluments) 68,427 64,376
Retirement benefit schemes RIREFET 2R

contributions (excluding directors) (T"BIEES) 13,391 14,541
Equity-settled share-based payment NEREE RN AER N

expenses 53 6,620 =
Total staff costs BTIXAHEE 88,438 78,917
Cost of inventories sold HEFEKAR 492,738 441,793
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEM&E BB

plant and equipment 10 35
Depreciation of property, Y- -BERERBITE

plant and equipment 5,954 6,172
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEETE 936 =
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 120 =
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  TE/~ 1 & 5% 78 4 4 - 936
Impairment loss recognised in respect REEEERBERRZ

of allowance for credit losses, REEE - kR EE

net of reversal 113 651
Research and development expenses e (M)

(note) 9,273 16,907
Operating lease rental relating to R IER BB B 1 R & 22 R

short-term lease and low-value F16 A BHEEHEER

lease upon application of HKFRS 16 REBEHEZKLEES 28 -
Operating lease rentals in respect ERAMECKERS

of premises - 10
Auditor’s remuneration: ZER I €
— audit services —BZRB 671 606
— non-audit services —EBZRE 135 165

806 #1

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2019, included

in the research and development expenses was
approximately RMB1,547,000 (2018: RMB1,625,000)

related to staff cost.

B i

HE=2 % F=H=F—H
LHFE FAHERIZEIAAN
# B AR #1,547,0007T (ZZE— N\
& AR¥1,625,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE - &

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

(Loss)/earnings (E51|) BF
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of basic
and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
((loss)/profit for the year attributable

to owners of the Company)

RUNZN/NSIEE SN

FEIEFE (B518B) 8 F))

—“NE+ZA=+—HLFE

B ( ) S BA

ARBHEEARENERERNREE (B
18) SBRMTBRBIAT 8B E

2019
—E-NF

2018
— N\
RMB’000
AR T

RMB’000
AR®TR

REREAREE (BE)
BN (&R

(16,247) 18,700

REE

Number of shares
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of

FER

HEREK (BR)
B B 3 i AR 0 S 19 B

basic (loss)/earnings per share 3,786,000 3,784,421
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: 7B #s T @AM £ -

Share options e % 4 - 213
Weighted average number of RETESRES (BE)

ordinary shares for the purpose of BT H) AR hn i

diluted (loss)/earnings per share 3,786,000 3,784,634

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

As the Company’s outstanding share options where applicable
had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share
calculation, the exercise of the above potential dilutive shares
is not assumed in the calculation of diluted loss per share for
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND 13.
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(A)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
EMOLUMENTS

Details of emoluments paid and payable to the directors
of the Company, which include the Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) for the year are as follows:

EE THRARSKREENS

A EERITHREAZHS

FARRRRESR (BETRER
(MTB#EE]) ) BN REMN 2 B
TREWMT:

Retirement benefits scheme
Salaries and other operations contributions

FoRHhEE BRBREMHER
2019 2019
“B-hE “E-hE
RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of director ARETFT ARBTR N S
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Huang P - - 600 500 9 4 609 504
Yang Guang Bt - - 200 7 4 367 204
Lin Zhenshuang "hEg - - 350 300 4 4 354 304
Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth el 161 152 - - - - 161 152
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Lee Kit Ying, Winnie TR 159 152 - - - - 159 152
Yang Xuetai BEX 60 61 - - - - 60 61
Tso Sze Wai R4 159 152 - - - - 159 152
539 517 1,310 1,000 2 12 1,869 1,529

Mr. Huang is also the CEO of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the CEO.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or CEO as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors or CEO waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in both years.

No transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in which
a director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

BRENARNRARITHRAE - £
B 2 REEETBARMMEHRR
BoME -

AEEWES A FHN T EFTRITRAEE -
ERREMAREE SR MARKEIEL
B ERBERZME - ZMEF
B BESEFXNTHAIMELRER
RIEFIBE -

RRBHRAR A E R BB ER] I BB
SEEXBEHAARREENETER
FEEEEER R BN AFERIAF
BEMSREIDER RS R REH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND 13. EX - THEARLESME &)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS B EEEEFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest REEREBREAESHMAL
in the Group for the year include nil (2018: nil) directors. BRERZEZR(ZE-—NF ZR)E
The emoluments payable to the remaining five (2018: E-FRENESHBAR(ZZ—N
five) individuals during the year which are employees F RA)ALT(EE)HNB W
were as follows: IS &

2019 2018
—g-nE  —ENE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Salaries and other allowances e REAMERL 284 473
Equity-settled share-based payment — JARE# &8 B LAR (D /2 2558
expenses AN ENTET 3,310 -
Retirement benefits scheme RREFET B
contributions 20 10
3,614 483
During the year, certain non-director and non-chief FA REBEARABERESS &
executive highest paid employees were granted share THEFELFTRAENESH
options, in respect of their services to the Group under B & B 3t A 2 5= B4 g 1O AR T 2
the share option scheme of the Company. Details of IR RE - AR RE ST EIFTIB H N 4R
the share option scheme are set out in note 33 to the & IR MEES3 -

consolidated financial statements.

The aggregated emoluments of each of the remaining EfpAZ (T N\F 08K
five (2018: five) highest paid individuals fell within the BEMALOBEFIHN FLATE
following bands: ;

Number of individuals

N

2019 2018

—E2-NF —E-N\F

Nil to HKD1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 7T 5 5
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five AEREVTESNFHTAEES
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or FMAL ERRSMARKEK
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of RIMAREE & 7 52E) - S IE QR
office. None of the five highest paid individuals waived or BemE-ZmEFE HERLA
agreed to waive any emoluments in both years. BERFMATHARXRERELT

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

14. DIVIDEND

15.

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year, nor
any dividend has been proposed by the board of directors
subsequent to the end of the reporting period (2018: nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(@)

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employees are required to contribute 5% of their
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and
they can choose to make additional contributions. The
employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5%
of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum
of HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contributions”), and this
is the only obligation of the Group with respect to the
MPF Scheme to make the required contribution. The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at the age
of 65, death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a specific percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits schemes operated
by the government of the PRC is made the specified
contributions under the schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.

The total expense recognised in consolidated profit or loss

of approximately RMB13,411,000 (2018: RMB14,553,000)
represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

14.

15.

iR B

FRBME RN HEZRRERNREEKRE
LHRBEESMRERIKNETMA
(ZZT—N\F ).

iR K18 A 5t &

@ AEBEREFERINELESH
SR T - e b Rt e
SMmEERAEEEESHEE
THBYSHEAEZSERE -BE
BIESTE BEAKRE AH5%
s PR & & 1,500/ T e 20
WAl R EH BIMER - BEEME
AERFIZEB AFHY R LR &S
1,500/ 7ot & ([98Hl 1Rl ) -
it BANEBERESE S EE
HRERRAM—E T 8165
BRI BT 28k T 1ERE
FrEEERS 2 ME R FI MR-

#
5
B

b)) AEENFTEMNBEARNEEZR
HPERFEENEREENR
K&t E - MBARERF KA
BB 2 AR KAR FI 5T B/
HER e REBB P BRBFLEN
RIKEFENE—BETARE
ZetBlEREEET - BRREE
BrEt Ad825 -

REEIEETFERANBAILHOAEAR
#13,411,000T (ZZE - NF: AR
14,553,00070) ' BAEEREBE_-F
—NE+—B=+—BLEFER:FER
B EMLL ZRZEFTE T MHR e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. % BEKRE

Machinery and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
B BERRE HE it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTL AREFTT AREFT AREFT
Cost B
As at 1 January 2018 R=ZF-N\E—H—H 122,804 35,660 3,882 162,346
Additions during the year AEERE - 915 226 1,141
Disposals during the year AEEHE - (285) (350) (635)
As at 31 December 2018 and RZZ-NF
as at 1 January 2019 +ZA=Z+—-8k
“Z-n&—AR—H 122,804 36,290 3,758 162,852
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) WeEE B8 2 7] (FT3E34) - 2 - 20
Acquired on additions during the year AEEREME - 202 - 202
Disposals during the year AEELE = (91) (3) (94)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-NEF+=R
=+—H 122,804 36,421 3,755 162,980
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
As at 1 January 2018 R-ZE-N\F—F—H 31,359 26,588 847 58,794
Charge for the year FRZH 4,415 1,395 362 6,172
Eliminated on disposals rk=is g - (257) (289) (546)
As at 31 December 2018 and RZZE-\E+=A
as at 1 January 2019 =+—-Ak=ZE-NF
—A—H 35,774 21,726 920 64,420
Charge for the year FRTH 4,406 1,192 356 5,954
Eliminated upon on disposals HER = (72) @) (75)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-N%+=R
=t+—~H 40,180 28,846 1,273 70,299
Carrying amounts REE
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z-NE+=A
=t-A 82,624 7,575 2,482 92,681
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-\%F+=R
=+—H 87,030 8,564 2,838 98,432
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16.

17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # = —

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the follow rates per
annum:

Over the shorter of term of
the lease or 2.5%

10%-25%

10%-33%

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

As at 31 December 2019, buildings with carrying amounts
of approximately RMB59,807,000 (2018: RMB63,182,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

.%:"FA B 5 ¥ 3 MY &

—NE+-A=+—BLFE

16. M=% BEKRHE @)

FHltmE - BMERREEBRELEN

THFRFERE

Bx FHHISL2.5% -
NERE H BE

M REE 10%—25%

RE 10%—33%

RZE—hAh&F+_A=+—8 FEE

%) /5 NR#59,807,0007T ( Z & — )\ 4F:
AR #63,182,00070) 2 1 F B iR 1
BAREBERBITRE 2 ER-

17. FRAEEE

Leasehold land

THE £ i

RMB’000

AREETF T

Carrying amount as at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—HNEEE 35,403

Depreciation charge MERX (936)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2019 RZE-—hF+=ZA=+—H

B ERE(E 34,467

The carrying amount of the leasehold land is located in the
PRC under the medium-term lease where its manufacturing
facilities are primarily located and office buildings. The Group
is the registered owner of these leasehold land. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests from their previous owners, and there are no longer
payments to be made under the term of the land lease, other
than payments based on rateable values set by the relevant
government authorities. These payments vary from time to
time and are payable to the relevant government authorities.
The leasehold land components of these owned properties
are presented separately only if the payment can be allocated
reliably.

As at 31 December 2019, leasehold land with carrying amount
of approximately RMB29,865,000 have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

EPHﬂfﬂ‘*TE’ﬁH‘*iﬂE’UEﬁﬁ@%&ﬁ
HERBMRABETEMNPE K&
IEEZ# HETHHMELEET - — B
MBEEHMRIE URELRNEREEE
ZEWEES  BRE L HE RUR
BB R HEAR IR A BE B B P AR E MY
%%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁmﬁ’%?l\ﬁ%%h‘ X B By
i AN THERFREM &
ﬁ%’ﬂﬁb FOoRR REFEBWEN
HELHARD TR EBFES-

RZZBE—hF+-_A=+—H KEE
% 5 AN R #29,865,000 2 FHE T2
BHEAAEBEERRITRHE ZER

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
20194 F 3§

137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

18.

19.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments comprise of leasehold land held in the
PRC under medium-term lease and are analysed for reporting
purposes as follows:

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

18.

FNHERE
BNHEERBERERFEREPBREES
REZHETH WmE BTN
T

2018
—T-N\F

RMB’000
ARBT T

PG BT

Non-current assets EMENEEE 34,467
Current assets mEEE 936
35,403

Upon application of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, the Group
has reclassified prepaid lease payments to right-of-use assets.

As at 31 December 2018, leasehold land with carrying amount
of approximately RMB30,652,000 have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLES

The principal amount of the promissory note was
RMB34,800,000 and the fair value of the promissory note at
initial recognition was approximately RMB28,700,000. The
maturity date is 2 years from the issue date of promissory
note. The promissory note was measured at amortised cost
with an effective interest rate of 10.13%. As at 31 December
2018, the promissory note receivables was fully settled.
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R-ZE-NF-A-HEREENBR
SEAFIGRE ARECHKANEE
REABFOBERERREE-

RZE—NF+_A=+—8 KEE
% B AN R 30,652,000 2 FHE T2
WIFEARNEBERBITRE ZER-

AR EBE WA

A E R K5 R A A R 34,800,000
LR EBRRUBERREN D FEEL
A AR #28,700,0005T ° B B H A B %
HEE AT B B o A N EiR iR
KA S BEEHEAE1013% R =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
As at 1 January 2018, as at 31 December 2018 and
as at 1 January 2019

200 BEEE

Customers’
relationship
EPEER

RMB’000
ARBTT

Jo N

R—_ZE—N\&F—HF—H"
—T-NE+-_A=+—H
;E=ZFE-hF—H—H =

Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) W B B B~ B FTIETS (FT3E34) 1,967
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—-—NF+=ZA=+—8 1,967
Accumulated amortisation RETE
As at 1 January 2018, as at 31 December 2018 and RZE—-—NF—H—H"

as at 1 January 2019 —E-N\F+ZHA=+—H

r=—FE—-—NF—H—AH =

Charge for the year FAZMH 120
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-—hF+ZH=1—H 120
Carrying amount REE

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-RAE+ZHA=+—H 1,847

As at 31 December 2018

R-ZE-N\F+-HA=+—H =

Customers’ relationship has finite useful lives and are amortised

on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

EFRAFRNERASHER YRN10FR
HERREH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

21. GOODWILL
RMB’000

ARBTT

Cost AR AR

As at 1 January 2018, as at 31 December 2018 and NR-_E—-—NEFE—HF—H"

as at 1 January 2019 —E-NF+-_A=+—H
E=ZF—-hF—H—H -

Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) W BB KB A Bl FTE A (FT3E34) 5,670

As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NFE+=ZA=+—H 5,670

Accumulated impairment ZstEE

As at 1 January 2018, as at 31 December 2018, NWZ_E—N\F—A—H8"

as at 1 January 2019 and as at 31 December 2019 —E—-N\E+=-_HB=+—8"

ZE-AF—H—HEK
—E-hAF+-_A=+—H -

Carrying amount REE

As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZBE—hhE+=ZA=+—H 5,670

As at 31 December 2018 R-E—NEFE+-_A=+—8H _

RBEWR BB 2KEE (ARG
HMEBR)EITEEE IREESBR
RE([RE]) 2 RESELEM-

The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) at the end of the reporting period were
allocated to CGUs of Jinjiang Jingting Trading Company
Limited* (B IHEE SHERAF) (Jingting”).

Goodwill associated with the CGU of Jingting arose on 23 May
2019 from business combination.

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and discount
rate of 14.6% and cash flow beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

EpnERCETEVRABNEER_-F
—NFRAZ+=BHHPEREHEE-

B AR E SR SENEREERS
EMETE i EXRANESRERA
THERE IR [ P it A R E5F HIR KA
BER/I46% M BIREARBHASF
HzHeRERANRAI%REL K
Rl - ZIE R R DEREBTENIG
RIEA YA TEBEBTENFEE
HgRE - REEFENEMERRE
RERSR/A/ MBGFTERE SIEH
ERENERBE ZGEFTEREFBE
MEENEEBHMSERMME -

* For identification purpose only
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21,

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

GOODWILL (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, management of
the Group determines that there is no impairment on CGU of
Jingting with reference to valuation performed by IVL, a firm
of independent qualified professional valuers. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of goodwill
to exceed the recoverable amount of CGU of Jingting. If the
discount rate was changed to 20.4%, while other parameters
remain constant, the recoverable amount of CGU of Jingting
would equal its carrying amount.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

Contingent consideration receivables represent the profit
guarantee given by the Vendors to the Group in relation to the
acquisition of Jingting (note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements). Contingent consideration receivables has been
designated as financial assets at FVTPL upon initial recognition
and is measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The movement of the fair value of contingent consideration
receivables is as follow:

21,

22.

[5Gk X€ )]

BE_T-NFt-A=1+—HLFE"
AEEEREE2EHBIARERME
BERFEERARETNGE BE
BRENREELBUITBERE - BEE
R ZERENEFMASIEBEZ(LY

EEYRENEOEBRBEARERSE
EBEUNAKRESR - HITREEENR
20.4% MEMSBRIETE  BBRER
TEABRMNARESE{ENERE
B

PR = RRAE

RS ARBREARRBREMEAR
SEBEMFBER (RE M BEHREM
F34) - FEW S AR ER VI 1A FER B IR
TEARAFEFABSENEREE P
REHAREZATETE - BRKARE
MAFEESHOT:

2019
—®2-h%E

2018
—=-N\F
RMB’000
ARMEF T

RMB’000
AR®T R

As at 1 January Rn—H—H - -
Arising from acquisition of a subsidiary WESH B A RIFTE -

(note 34) (Kt7E34) 14,232 -
Compensation from profit guarantee FEREME (2,157) =
Loss arising on change in fair value NTFEZEEENEIR (7,497) =
As at 31 December R+t-—A=+—H 4,578 =

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement (“SPA”) in
relation to the acquisition of Jingting, Fu Kun* ({5 1#) (the
“Vendor”) have given a guarantee to the Group that the audited
net profits after tax (excluding any extraordinary items and
one-off non-recurring items) of Jingting for the three financial
years ending 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2021 (each of the “Guaranteed Period”) shall not
be less than RMB3,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Profit”) for each
of the Guaranteed Period (the “Profit Guarantee”).

* For identification purposes only

*

BEEEKEGENEERZ([EE
el A ((EF])ERMAEER
B EHE-_Z—NAF+=-—A=+—8"
= aE A R = Sl —
F+_A=Z+—HL=ZAEARRFE (&
[REH]) MEASREBHANLCEZ
BRREGH (TRETAERNER &
—RBHEEEHEEB)FALRARKE
3,000,000t ([FERE]) o

EHZF

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
20194 F 3§

141



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

22,

23.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES (continuea)

In case the Profit Guarantee is not fulfilled for the
corresponding year, the Vendor shall pay 9.67 times of the
difference between the Guaranteed Profit and the audited
net profits after tax of Jingting (the “Shortfall Payment”) to the
Group. The Shortfall Payment shall be settled by the Vendor by
way of set off against the principal amount of the promissory
notes and any remaining balance shall be paid by the Vendor
in cash.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the audited
net profit after tax of Jingting did not satisfy the Profit
Guarantee, as a result, the Shortfall Payment of approximately
RMB2,157,000 will be used to set off against the outstanding
promissory notes due by the Group in accordance with the
terms and condition stated in the SPA.

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivables as at
31 December 2019 are based on valuation performed by IVL,
a firm of independent qualified professional valuers, by using
the Monte Carlo Simulation method and a loss on fair value
change of approximately RMB7,497,000 was recognised in
profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

22. EWSIAKRE &)

i ARBERIBEF R ZRFBRE AE
77 FE TR 7R = B S A5 BR824
BERBRRANZ ZEM0.671E ([Z8
R - ERWFARAE T BBEEA
REBAESNHAN HRBEEHES
IR & ST

BE-Z-NE+-A=+—HILtEE -
B WS B AZ PR T 1R A0 T AR Z AR AR
F AL RIEE B WA IE R R
ERHIAELH ARE2157,0007T # B R
A EBENNHREERALEE-

R-ZE—-hFE+-A=+—BHEIL
RARENRAFEDNERBILAEREE
HEMEEMERTFHERARRAR
BRSEFEAETHNEE A FEEZY
BB 4 A AR 7,497,000 BB
RER

23. 7€

2019 2018
—E-NEF —T—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBTT

Raw material FE AR 176,153 119,800
Work-in-progress & m 23,900 12,059
Finished goods BIRK T 55,933 29,239
255,986 161,098
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

24, EZEWNRIE

2019
—B-NF

RMB’000
AR®T R

2018
et BT
RMB’000
AREF T

Trade receivables arising from

EFANMNE S RIEIR

contracts with customers 179,456 235,712
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBBEE (1,750) (1,637)
177,706 234,075

As at 1 January 2018, trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers amounted to approximately RMB154,350,000.

The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 days to 150
days to its trade customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance of credit losses, presented based on the earlier of
invoice date or revenue recognition date is as follow:

R-ZE-NF—-—A—-H FTFAL
EXENEIRERBLORARK
154,350,0007T °

KEB—RGETEHREFI0EE150H
MNEER AEETERZSERETE
A3 1 5 o

AT TRBEZEB YRS ER B8
REZ2INEZRUFIE (HNREEE
BEE) WRE ST

2019 2018

—E—NEF —E—)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

0 to 90 days 0£90H 92,766 129,711
91 to 180 days 91£180H 61,241 78,617
Over 180 days H#BiB180H 23,699 25,747
177,706 234,075

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregates
carrying amount of approximately RMB86,690,000 (2018:
RMB106,001,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
directors consider any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period.

RZE—-—hE+ZA=1+—8 &X&E
B RUENSEREREAEN S
AR 86,690,000 (ZE—NF: AR
#106,001,0007C ) A fE N SR TE - 2 S5 1E
WHRIERREBRE B

BEEZRUGRENAIWEORZEER &
EERUBZNRELARERSHK
Y FENEEEENEMEL-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24.

The Group’s trade receivables (net of allowance for credit
losses) that are denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant Group entities are as
follows:

usD
JPN

EZEWRE (&)

NAEEHEERNY
BIHENASEE S RKFE (2K
EEBRRE) T :

2019
—B-NF

RMB’000
ARBT

152,460
13,500

PNOR=

Be B

WIS E

2018
—T-N\F
RMB’000
ARETT

149,398
37,915

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set
out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

B 5 RUFENBEMEFEEIRNEE
B R M 5E6 -

25. PREPAYMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25, A REREMEKRRE
2019 2018
—E-hF —T—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBF T
Other receivables H fih fE W FR08 552 16,680
Value-added tax receivables JE UK B B R 28,964 31,418
Prepayment TEfTFRIE 36,636 49,518
66,152 97,616

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are set
out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

26. FIXED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND 26.
CASH

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and placed with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The fixed
time deposits are interest bearing ranging from 1.30% to
4.26% (2018: 1.1% to 4.0%) per annum and mature within
365 days (2018: 365 days) from the placements date. The
fixed time deposits with the amounts of approximately of
RMB10,478,000 (2018: RMB7,450,000) were used to secure
bills payables granted to the Group and will be released upon
settlement of bills payables.

The Group’s fixed time deposits and bank balances and cash
denominated in RMB which are located in the PRC are subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

FEE -
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EHERRRITEHRERE

IRTTAE SRR Z B FI R 5T B AL 17 AR 31 2P
WEELCEEMEER THIETT - EH
FFARN F1.30% £4.26%
F:11% 24.0% ) MFF X E BB
FHRHBEPISARNETH (= — N
F:365K) c&FH AR10,478,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

FIXED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND 26. EHIFRREBTHEBRES (&)

CASH (continued)
The Group’s fixed time deposits and bank balances and cash AEBUEBASEEBIENELTE
that are denominated in currency other than the functional ZERERRBITEBKBRRESOT

currency of the relevant Group entities are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT

Usb ETT 468 1
HKD BIT 714 1,323
Details of impairment assessment of fixed time deposits EHERRIRTESROBEN GBS

and bank balances are set out in note 6 to the consolidated RERE ISR KR 7E6 -
financial statements.
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27. ESENRERESGERE

2019 2018
—g-nE -FNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTIT

Trade payables S ENFIE 1,029 2,339
Bills payables R RE 30,450 32,865
31,479 35,204
An aging analysis of trade and bills payables presented based RRERRLZEERARE B SEN
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as RIBERENEEZERSTOT
follows:

2019 2018
—g-nE —T-)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT

0 to 90 days 0%290H 22,559 18,564
91 to 180 days 91%2180H 8,889 14,910
181 to 365 days 1812365H 31 157430
31,479 35,204
The credit period granted by the supplier normally ranging from HREBRTHEESH KN FI0EE
30 days to 120 days. 120H °
As at 31 December 2019, trade and bills payables R=Z2—NE+RA=+—8 #EXT
denominated in USD and JPY amounted to approximately FBTFENE S EMNRIBERENRE
RMB177,000 (2018: RMB421,000) and RMB47,000 (2018: nil) DRI B ARE177,000T (ZZE— N
respectively. &F: AR ¥421,0007T) & A R #47,000

=B NE B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

28. ACCRUED EXPENSES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 28. Ei:EZEA HMENREREHN
afE

29.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARET T

Contract liabilities AHEaE 661 303
Amount due to ultimate holding company JEAS B A4 f R B FRIE 2 =
Other payables H b &~ A 8,784 799
Accrued expenses fEstEH 5,870 5,784
15,317 6,886

Amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured,
interest-fee and repayable on demand.

As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB189,000.

Contract liabilities represented advance payments received
from customers for sales of umbrella and the related products
pursuant to the respective sales contracts before the control of
the products are passed to the customers.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018, the entire
balances are recognised as revenue during the year ended
31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, accrued expenses and other

payables denominated in HKD amounted to approximately
RMB5,445,000 (2018: RMB1,885,000).

BANK BORROWINGS

Secured, repayable within one year

from the end of the reporting period —FREE

ENSEERABDFRAREERR 28

R-ZE—NE—A—RB AHEaEBENAE
A KR #189,0007T °

BHRBRERERNEFREREEP
ZH RESEHEANRTFPEESH
HERREREBERMEMR -

AZE—NF+_A=+—HH
SHBEE 2HHBRBREE-_ZE—IF
T A=+ HILEFEERASRE-

R-ZE—NAF+_A=+—8 UBET
STEMETERAMEMENTIELNSA
R#5,445,0000L (ZZ—N\F: ARE
1,885,0007T) °

RAT AKX

2019 2018
o

—=-N\fF
RMB’000
AREFT

RMB’000
AR®TR

BEM AR B RS R

202,800 196,930

As at 31 December 2019, all bank borrowings are interest
bearing at the PRC loan prime rate over a spread. The bank
borrowing fixed at interest rate ranging from 4.35% to 5.76%
per annum (2018: 4.35% to 5.85% per annum) and were due
within 1 year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

29. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group’s bank borrowings were secured by the
Group’s buildings and right-of-use assets (2018: prepaid
lease payments payments) with the carrying amounts of
approximately RMB59,807,000 (2018: RMB63,182,000) and
RMB29,865,000 (2018: RMB30,652,000) respectively.

30. PROMISSORY NOTES

As at 1 January n—A—H
Issue of promissory notes upon completion

for acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34)

29.

30.

RER B B 2 A
RETERLRR

RITRER (&)

AKEBEMRITERD BIABREEAED BIL)
A AR #59,807,0007T (ZZT—\F: A
R #63,182,0007T) & A R %29,865,000
T (ZZE—)\F: AR#30,652,0007T)
MNAEBEFREREBEE(ZE—N
FIEMNEERE) EITR

ARRE

2019
—E-hE

2018

RMB’000
AR®TR

RMB’000
ARBTIT

(K17E34) 20,673 -
Compensation from profit guarantee (note 22) FE{R & & (Ff5522) (2,157) =
Imputed interest on promissory notes (note 9) &5 ZiE & T 8 (1 E9) 631 =
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 19,147 -

On 23 May 2019, the Company acquired the entire equity
interest in Jingting with total consideration of RMB29,000,000,
in which RMB24,000,000 was settled by issue of promissory
notes to the Vendor by the Company. The promissory notes
are unsecured, interest-free and maturity on the date falling
on 36 months after the issuance date of the promissory notes
(subject to adjustment by set off against the Shortfall Payment
(if any)). The fair value of promissory notes with the amount of
approximately RMB20,673,000 at the issue date have been
arrived by reference to the valuation performed by IVL, a firm
of independent qualified professional valuers. The effective
interest rate of the promissory notes at the issuance date is
13.86%.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the audited
net profit after tax of Jingting did not satisfy the Profit
Guarantee, as a result, the Shortfall Payment of approximately
RMB2,157,000 will be used to set off against the outstanding
promissory notes due by the Group in accordance with the
terms and condition stated in the SPA.

R-ZEBE—HAERA-+=B KA F
4 KB A R #29,000,0007T U B w5 2= M
2 ERR% 4E - E s A R #24,000,0007T H
ARG REBFETEALEZREN TR
B -AHEHREEF 28 BERNEAR
ZREITHRI6EAR (TR REEE
HEHIE(E)mETHAZ)ER| -
#) N R #20,673,0007T Y 75 5, 22 15 5 B
THHNAFENREBLAKEER
EMBEERFHEBERARETHHEMNS
Ho AR EBEREBEITHHENERTIRA
13.86% °

HE-_Z-NE+-_A=+—BHIt&EE "
i A A AR R B 18 4 R AR AR B AR
B BRI B B s MR R R AR
ZHEFIALN ARE2157,0007T # B R
EHASBENNHAREERLERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

31. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 3. EEHEERS

Fair value
adjustment on
acquisition of

subsidiaries
W SRt B A A
/NSRS
RMB’000
ARET T
As at 1 January 2018, as at 31 December 2018 and RZZE-NF—H—H"
as at 1 January 2019 —E-N\F+ZA=+—H
M=Z—-NF—HA—AH -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiary (note 34) WS B A B FTEE & (F3E34) 492
Credit to consolidated profit or loss (note 10) AR EEE (MFE10) (30)
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZB-h&F+=A=+—H 462
No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect of FR R AR 2R F) R A A1 BT FEURI - A otk i R
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams and REMELERIBEEE  BRERRIEBS
unrecognised tax losses will be expired within five years. BHERAFAREE-
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. R
Number of shares Nominal values of ordinary shares
BRBEE EERZEE
'000 HK$'000 RMB’000
T FHL ARETT
Ordinary shares of SR E{E0.0016% T M E B
HK$0.0016 each
Authorised: ETE
As at 1 January 2018, RZE-\§—A—H"
as at 31 December 2018, “E-N\F+-A=+—H"
as at 1 January 2019 and ZE-NE-A-HR
as at 31 December 2019 —Z-N¥+ZA=+—H 6,250,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRER:
As at 1 January 2018 RZZ—-N\E—F—H 3,750,000 6,000 4,731
Issue of share upon exercise of 171 FE A ERF 24T 1 (BT5E)
share options (note) 36,000 58 51
As at 31 December 2018, R=B-NF+=ZA=+-8"
as at 1 January 2019 and “E-nAE-A—-HK
as at 31 December 2019 ZE-hF+ZA=+-H 3,786,000 6,058 4,782
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain share option MeE: #HEZZFT-—N\F+ZA=+—AH1
holders exercised their option right to subscribe for 36,000,000 FE ETERERBEATELR
ordinary shares at exercise price of HK$0.097 per share. % #E LA 32 17 8 (8 & 1%0.097 7% ;T R

f#36,000,000/% & i A% ©
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32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL (continuea)

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at the meeting of the Company. All ordinary share rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 January 2015 for the purpose of
rewarding certain eligible persons for their past contributions
and attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance
with the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
force for a period of ten years commencing on the listing date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
any proposed, full-time or part-time employees, executive
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any
directors or proposed director (including non-executive
director and independent non-executive directors) of any of its
subsidiaries; any direct or indirect shareholder of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and any advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting. Subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval
of the shareholders in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time, the board may:

32.

33.

R (&)

EARBEBANEEIRERMNRER
ARARBRELERA K —ENRE
B-EEBEMARRRBREEFTH

EEL 2

DESEECBRERS

ARFR_E—RAF—AZ+=HEH
RS ([ERERTE]) 58
ETEERATBENER B3I KA
BHASEENRE BRANDBEEE
k/RHEEEBREREEHAEENRK
HWIBRAKNEFHEER AL
B ARG EEENFEBRR -BRIR
BRERETEIM R RS R EIN
B8 e T AR+ FHM
HIEEEM

BREENAERZ2BAREARAT
ok B AE o] P /B 2 R V(RT3 58 - 2K
RBEE TRAERGHRBE: EE
ANBRARNERNEFHERAES (2
BINTESRBIYUFRATES) K
NEIHEEAR B R RN EAEREE
BERBR  RAR R S E RN B R FS
ERHEAA BB HER TP EK
e

AITERIZER S A EE T E
st B3R H AT A AR A RE B 1T Y
EaBRHNEBE AETESBBERERR
RAEHEBBREEHTRMA10% - 7E
A B HIEE i R M AR R A IR SR K &
M/ EMRAITERENEREME
KB T - EHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 33. LIERLE EBRERE (&)

(continueq)

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of the approval by the shareholders in
general meeting; and/or

(i)  grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the board.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Group (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within
any 12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of options in
excess of 1% limit shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular
by the Company; and (ii) the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting and/or other requirements prescribed under
the listing rules from time to time.
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 33.

(continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, which period may commence
from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends on a
date which is not later than ten years from the date of grant of
the share options subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. There is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share
Option Scheme are required to pay the Company HK1.0 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before 21 days after the offer
date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more
board lots of the shares on the date of the offer for the grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of a
share.

As at 31 December 2019, the number of shares in respect of
which may be issued upon exercise of share options granted
and remain outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
375,000,000, representing 9.9% of the shares of the Company
in issue at that date.

URESEEZBRERS (4)

MARBEE FEBTHRABREER
R A EHEARTERE KA
BRI ERITEESAE FAEE.
SEAN - MM ER + @ A B N |
DRER B IERITE R E M EED
BE AR O ERBRE BAAQRME
R FE B ZEITRMDM0.1% RIREARR
ABROREL B ETEERER
385,000,000/ 7T BIIZEE IR R A AR E K
SEEUE FAEE-

BREnBRETENHESEE 2
FrA B BEEERRE ARG 28
BREEHRESTBBTFL ARR
REBRFER LG -1TERRENH
BETHAEARBERE -—BRREHR-
BRETSI2EAZREAR TRIERZ
BHIR21 A Z A M A 2 A X {41.0/8
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BRETEEHESETE EAFER
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=PRI UTE ¢ R (i) B EfE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 33. LIERLE EBRERE (&)

(continueq)

As at 31 December 2018, there was no outstanding share RZZBE-—NF+ZA=+—H8 #ER
options under any share option scheme. BERBRERT S 2 M RITEEARE -
The following tables discloses details of the Company’s share TREZREE KERAMEAR R ERE
option held by the employees and consultants and movements ZHEREH:

in such holdings:

Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding
asat
Exercise Ouistanding Lapsed Exercised 31122018 Granted
Exercisable price asat turing during and turing Outstanding
Gategory of participants Date of grant period per share 01012018 2018 2018 01.01.2019 2019 asat31.122019
“2-N\f
=k
=t-AR
N
g -A-H
SREEH f BRITREE 3 f HR{TE
HKS
A
Employees of 03112017 03.11.2017-02.112018 0097 252,000,000 (216,000,000  (36,000,000) - - -
the Group N
A5EEE “F-t§+-A=H “E-tET-RZRE
“F-N\E1+-AzR
10.04.2019 10.04.2019 - 10.04.2029 0,045 - - - - 375000000 375,000,000
“E-NEMATE “E-NEMATEE
ZEChEMATH
252,000,000 (216,000,000 (36,000,000) - 375000000 375,000,000
Consulants 03112017 03.11.2017-02.11.2018 0.097 108,000,000 (108,000,000 - - - -
BE “E-t¥+-A=H “E-tET-AZBE

“F-\E+-A=R

360,000,000 (324,000,000)  (36,000,000) - 375,000,000 375,000,000

Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 0097 0097 0.097 - 0045 0045
ETHTRE (B7)
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

No share option was exercised, expired, lapsed or cancelled
for the year ended 31 December 2019. No share option was
granted, expired or cancelled for the year ended 31 December
2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, options were
granted on 10 April 2019. The estimated fair value of the
options granted are approximately RMB6,620,000.

This fair value was calculated using the binomial option pricing
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

33.

URESEEZBRERS (4)

BHE-_T-NF+-A=+—HLFE"
BUERB IR TE  BIBR - R
BHE-_T-\F+ZA=t+—HLFE"
BEBAER L - DI SEEH-

BE_T-NAF+_A=t—HL*F
B -R-F-NFOA+TRRLRBE-
BRENBRENGIT A TFEOR/ARE
6,620,0007T °

ZAFETER DA BT EREE
HeoBRMBAENT

10 April 2019

—T—hF

WA+H

Exercise price (HK$) TEE (EBx) 0.045
Expected volatility (%) 8 HA K 1R (%) 74.480
Expected life (years) FEHIF PR () 10
Risk-free rate (%) EREERE (%) 1.552
Expected dividend yield (%) FEHREER (%) -

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 4.7
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The binomial option pricing model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

T 29350 O 73 5 PR A A AR RS 4.7 5
2 S R T B o BT R T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

34.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 23 May 2019, the Group completed to acquire the
entire equity interest in Jingting with total consideration of
RMB29,000,000, in which RMB5,000,000 was settled by
cash and RMB24,000,000 was settled by issue of promissory
notes to the Vendor by the Company. Jingting is engaged in
the wholesale, retail and export of umbrellas, umbrella parts,
accessories and plastic products. The amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition was approximately
RMB5,670,000. This acquisition has been accounted for using
the acquisition method. The acquisition of Jingting aligns with
the Group’s strategy to shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network
and brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s
branded umbrellas which command higher margins and
perfect target for the Group’s vertical integration.

CONSIDERATION TRANSFERRED:

34.

W EBF B 1 |

RZE-—NFRAZ+=8 T£BU
4R (B A R #29,000,0007T U B 55 2= #
Z 2R AE - Hp A R #5,000,0007T AR
& B AR #24,000,0007T B A A A
LA E B 81THE R EERN TN ER
ENERDE FNETHH - -EHFELREH
BmHAtE - TEMEO - KEEED
B2 A ANRES 670,000 I WED
FRKEEAR KBERETASAEE
BEBELRER LN EEBRET
DA MR R R AR e
AEERERENERE AAEEER
BEEXESMBEEETEEEE-

EWERH:

Fair value

of the

consideration

REZLQAFE

RMB’000

AR T

Cash consideration ReRE 5,000
Contingent consideration receivables (note 22) FEU S AKRME (MFE22) (14,232)
Issue of promissory notes (note 30) BITHE B (MPEES0) 20,673
Total consideration transferred at fair value EAFEESEOERE 11,441
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 4. WEHELQE (#)
Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately U BE 4R B8 A AR 9 A R 690,000t B 1
RMB690,000 have been excluded from the consideration FregZREFR IR WERBEFELL
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in the cEmkEMEEAKERPITHRAS —
current year, within the administrative expenses line item BEHERABRAE -

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

ASSETS ACQUIRED AND LIABILITIES RECOGNISED AT THE RBREBEHUENEERERNE
DATE OF ACQUISITION ARE AS FOLLOWS: BT
RMB’000
AR® T
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) Y BB R (MRE16) 20
Intangible asset (note 20) EREE (5E20) 1,967
Trade receivables 5 IR 10,197
Other receivables H th e kIR 2,194
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 2,227
Trade payables 2 5 I 5IE (4,698)
Accrued expenses, other payable and JEETEBR MR RIER
contract liabilities AHEARE (5,644)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 31) EERBAEE (FIFE31) (492)
Net assets acquired Friis & E5E 5771
GOODWILL ARISING ON ACQUISITION: KWEBEENEE:
RMB’000
AREFIT
Consideration transferred BHEERE 11,441
Less: net assets acquired BT E EFE (5,771)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 21) W EE R mE (M21) 5,670
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 4. WIEMELR (#)

GOODWILL ARISING ON ACQUISITION: (continued) WBEENEE: (&)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Jingting because the KWEREEENE RAZEHKEE
cost of the combination included a control premium. In FEGSEE N REHEFHRE
addition, the consideration paid for the combination effectively ERLBERERSBREBAHR K K
included amounts in relation to the benefit of expected HmER KRTBERIEREENZ
synergies, revenue growth, future market development and MEe ZEM TR EEAINE
the assembled workforce of Jingting. These benefits are not RFRAREWAREAIHINELEE
recognised separately from goodwill because they do not meet Ky TERZER

the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected BEWEEENEER N EERI B
to be deductible for tax purposes. A @ T AR,
NET CASH OUTFLOW ON ACQUISITION OF JINGTING W B E RN IR SR FR
RMB’000
ARBT R
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 5,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents balances B WENE e MRS EEY
acquired R (2,227)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Jingting WHEmEMNIR ML F8E 2,773
Included in the profit for the year is approximately AEERABEREMENTEINELH
RMB2,087,000 attributable to the additional business #) N R #2,087,0007T ° A F [E Wi B35
generated by Jingting. Revenue for the year includes amount #49 A\ R #50,875,0007T & 7t E E A e

of approximately RMB50,875,000 generated from Jingting.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, WKEER=E—hLF—A—B=X"
revenue for the year of the Group would have been AIEEERNAFENBIREKEAARE
RMB587,335,000, and loss for the year of the Group would 587,335,0007T * i A& BN E 8 &
have been RMB15,557,000. The pro forma information is for B A AR #15,557,0007T ° 5 £ & K
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication THEHER WV ARTMBER =
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually Z-NF-—HA— Bk BAEEEE
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed BREIMREREEEE TEEEL
on 1 January 2019, nor is it intended to be a projection of AR IRFEE R TER -

future results.
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34.

35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and loss of the Group
had Jingting been acquired at the beginning of the current
year, the directors have:

o calculated depreciation of property, plant and equipment
acquired on the basis of the fair values arising in the initial
accounting for the business combination rather than
the carrying amounts recognised in the pre-acquisition
financial statements; and

o determined borrowing costs based on the funding levels,
credit ratings and debt/equity position of the Group after
the business combination.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(A) Detail of the balance with related parties at the end of the
reporting period is set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and
employees of the Group as set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements, who are considered as
the key management personnel of the Group, the Group
did not have any other significant compensations to key
management personnel.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

34.

35.

36.

WK B R ()

BEAFNASBURERERN [HZ]
Was R E%:

e REXBAMFWNIAETRES
BB~ FAE (1 FF 4R Al B 7% 5
RPERNREE) 7 E A REER
WE - BEMEBOTE: &

s REXBAHRAKENEZRK
T ERERRES K AE
TE fE AR AN

BEEALRS

(R) MNEMEHREREA L 2 HEHF
BENER A B R MY 5528 o

B) FEEBASHE

BRan4r & B 7S 3R 3% MY 513 FT i |
WEEBAEBETZEEBABZA
SEEEREESIMNZBESI &K
EEVERMETBERABIMNT
A EMhE KHFHE -

EFELETBERTABZMEAH
MEZEEEEREAXRBETSE

BRETE -

METHELENABYHRER

TR AKEERMETDELNAE
FE HERASRIREZEH- A
RETHELNABNERESRELR
KEERE ANDBEA/IAEDER/AE
BFeReRERE TEREEHNIAR

ST
ﬁ/ﬂui"
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE - &

—“NE+ZA=+—HLFE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 36. RIEZEBELNEBYHER &)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Interest Bank Promissory
payables borrowings notes Total
ERfFE RITER AAEE #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
As at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—A—H - 163,480 - 168,480
Financing cash flows BERERE (10,511) 33,450 - 22,939
Non-cash changes: FREEEH:
Interest expense recognised BRERM BT H
(note 9) (Pft7E9) 10,511 - - 10,511
As at 31 December 2018 and RZZE—N\F
as at 1 January 2019 +ZA=+—8Ak
—E-NE—-A—H - 196,930 - 196,930
Financing cash flows BERERE (10,182) 5,870 - (4,312)
Non-cash changes: FR2EH:
Issue of promissory notes upon AT 1451 BB
completion of acquisition of NEIRFEITAN
a subsidiary (note 34) Z& (KI:E34) - - 20,673 20,673
Compensation from profit FERERE
guarantee - - (2,157) (2,157)
Interest expense recognised BERERMEZ
(note 9) (PH7E9) 10,499 - 631 11,130
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZEB-1&
+=A=+—H 317 202,300 19,147 222,264
37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 37. FEFBERS

The Group entered into the followings major non-cash
investing and financing activities which are not reflected in the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

(@ Part of the consideration for the acquisition of a
subsidiary that occurred during the year ended
31 December 2019 comprised issue of promissory notes
and contingent consideration receivables. Further detalil
of the acquisition is set out in note 34 to the consolidated

financial statements.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the audited
net profit after tax of Jingting did not satisfy the Profit

Guarantee, as a result,

the Shortfall Payment of

approximately RMB2,157,000 will be used to set off
against the outstanding promissory notes due by the
Group which are not reflected in the financing activities in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT 38. XA BIM BB MR AR EEE B
OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY =

(A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (A) ADTFBBRRE

2019 2018
—E-nE —E-N\&

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTIT

Non-current asset ERBEE

Investment in subsidiaries TEH B AR 267,516 255,952

Current assets REBEE

Prepayment AT RIE 409 443

Amounts due from subsidiaries A N NETE ] 18,516 123,174

Bank balances and cash SRITEHRNIRE 145 144
19,070 123,761

Current liabilities REBEE

Accrued expenses EETEH 2,041 1,267

Amounts due to subsidiaries JE BT BB 2 R 3R 7E 20,019 17,213
22,060 18,480

Net current (liabilities)/assets *NE(BE) EE (2,990) 105,281

Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 264,526 361,233

Non-current liability EREBEE

Promissory notes A R 19,147 =

Net assets EEFE 245,379 361,233

Capital and reserves EAXRRHE

Share capital fi&% A 4,782 4,782

Reserves & 240,597 356,451

Total equity DB 245,379 361,233

Signed on behalf of the board of directors by: REREFSHFE:
Huang Weniji Yang Guang
BEXE wx
Director Director
2 EBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT 38. XA BIM BB MR AR EEE B

OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (continued) R(E)
(B) MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (B) AATREENEET
Translation ~ Share option Accumulated
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve reserve  Merger reserve losses Total
RA& BR{AEE Eifife BRERRE i ZitER @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT y Fr ) / Tr  ARETR
As at 1 January 2018 W=%-\§-A-AH 4,731 116,740 20,454 5,616 229,897 (33,867) 343,571
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (2,690) (2,690)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ BEHEHRELZ
financial statements ELER - - 17,450 - - - 17,450
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRE2ENE/ (B])
for the year ot - - 17,450 - - (2,690) 14,760
Issue of share upon exercise of TEBRERETRN
share options 51 3,421 - (6570) - - 2,902
Lapsed of share options BRERR - - - (5,046) - 5,046 -
As at 31 December 2018 and as at RZE-\E
1 January 2019 +-A=z+-Ak
—Z-nE-A-AH 4782 120,161 37,904 - 229,897 (31,511) 361,233
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (129,179) (129,179)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ REHHRREL
financial statements Eiz® - - 6,705 - - - 6,705
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREEYNE/ (B1])
for the year L - - 6,705 - = (129,179) (122,474)
Grant of share options RiLERE - - - 6,620 - - 6,620
As at 31 December 2019 R=B-1%
+=A=1+-H 4782 120,161 44,609 6,620 229,897 (160,690) 245319
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, particulars of the

subsidiaries of the Company are listed as follows:

Country/place of
incorporation/ date of
incorporation

HALER %/

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH A

Jicheng Umbrella BVI
Holding Limited
Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited ~ EBE X E
Jicheng Umbrella Hong Kong Hong Kong
Company Limited
ERREERERAA BE
HK Baohui Industry Limited Hong Kong
EREREXERAA BE
Zenith Century Limited BVI
Zenith Century Limited EBRLHS
Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd.*  PRC
(note)

BREKSEFARARF (M)  PE

Jinjiang Jicheng Industry Co., Ltd.*  PRC
(note)

BIENEIRRAR (HE) T8

*

For identification purposes only

Class of
shares held

iR &R

Ordinary

TER
Ordinary

TER
Ordinary
TER
Ordinary
EER

Paid up capital

BRER

Paid up capital

BRER

Proportion of ownership interest and
voting power held by the Company
ERARFRAEEERR

39. MBARZFHE

R—ZZE—AER-_ZT—NFE+=-A
Z—t—H ARANMBRARFBEOT:

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital  Principal activities
BERTRARE
RARELH BA/ERER ZEEE
2019

100 100 USD1 Investment holding
1ET REBR
100 100 HK$1 Investment holding

vEr RERR
HK$20,000  Dormant
2000087 EEEX
100 100 USD100  Dormant
100%T EEEZX
HK$180,000,000 Manufacturing and

100 100

100 100
sales of umbrellas
and umbrella
parts

HERHEERS
RRREH

Manufacturing and

180,000,0007 7T
100 100 RMB20,595,500
sales of umbrellas
and umbrella
parts
HERFERS
RRREH

AR820,595,5007T

Y EHES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —ZE—NF+_A=+—HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/ date of Class of
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held

il T A4 iR 5

39. MBLARZFE (&)

Issued and fully paid

Proportion of ownership interest and share capital/
voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
ERAMEREREERR BERTRAR
RRRELA BA/EMER FEER

2019
—E-RE
%

Wing Ka Investment BVI Ordinary
Holdings Limited

Wing Ka Investment EERRAS LR
Holdings Limited

Wing Wing (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary
Industrial Limited

KREBEEERRA Bk el

Jingting (note) PRC Paid up capital

BE () hE BRER

BAW

100

100

100

Except for Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited, Zenith Century
Limited and Wing Ka Investment Holdings Limited, all other

subsidiaries are indirectly held for the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their

respective place of incorporation/establishment.

Note:

The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.
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> USD10,000  Investment holding
10000%€7  ®REZR
- HK$1,000,000  Investment holding

100000087  HREER
= RMB1,000,000  Sale of umbrellas
and rain gears
AE®1,000000  HEEFRRMA
ik
BREXREXERBBR DA Zenith
Century Limited }2Wing Ka Investment
Holdings Limited 4h - FT /8 AL HE A 7
HRARRBIEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+ A =Z+—HIFE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) has spread across
China and other countries during the first quarter in 2020, the
business and economic activities have been affected. The
Group will keep monitoring the situation, assess and react
promptly to its impacts on the Group’s business operations.
Up to the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, the related financial impact on the Group could
not be reasonably estimated.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as at 1 January
2019. Under the transition methods, comparative information
is not restated.

In addition, certain comparative figures have been reclassified
to be consistent with the current period presentation.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March
2020.

40.

41,

42,

BEHMRER

BN BAREE (COVID-19R BT 4
E—FTEAEPELEMBERER B
MEERRE G E - NEBGEES
AR I EEASERERELENY
Y PRHEERE-HEGAUBERER
HEBE MELAS B HAERN
IS & -

EERBF

AEBER-_ZT-NF—A—BRKE
&R @& LR FE165E - N BIEE
T TEILBEF-

SO ETHRBBECKEFDE A
EARHI 2| RIT— B

MRS M BE®R

HRAEVBRERERZZE_ZTF=A
St HESESHENIRERT
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LU 2 R

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilites A F&H 7| AEBR BE A EHRFEEHE T
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the ZZEEUNBENBEHBE  HFkEaC T
published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out KB AMHHE -

below.

RESULTS E

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-H=t—HLFE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

—g-NE —T-/\F % —TAF ZF-IF
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTRT ARETT ARBTT ARBTRT

Revenue Wz 558,599 521,186 538,264 603,985 657,667
Gross profit EH 65,861 79,393 80,938 73,812 147,203
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (E51E)
il (11,441) 25,260 6,705 13,514 50,033
(Loss)/profit for the year KRBEBA
attributable to owners of I FE
the Company (E518) &F (16,247) 18,700 3,530 6,124 25,229

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—~H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

“E-hAE —T-)N\F ZT—tF ZT—R"F ZT—AfF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR

Non-current assets FERBEE 139,243 132,899 138,955 173,889 154,141
Current assets mMEEE 582,873 568,527 542,246 539,403 483,255
Current liabilities mEAaE 250,407 240,222 240,615 282,309 212,236
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 19,609 = = = =
Net assets BEEFE 452,100 461,204 440,586 430,983 425,160
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